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SINGAPORE AIRLINES LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

REPORT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group
and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2010.

1 Directors of the Company
The names of the directors in office at the date of this report are-

Stephen Lee Ching Yen — Chairman

Chew Choon Seng — Chief Executive Officer

Euleen Goh Yiu Kiang (Independent)

David Michael Geonski (Independent)

James Koh Cher Stang (Independent)

Chnistina Ong (Independent)

Lucten Wong Yuen Kuai {Independent)

Dr Wilham Fung Kwok Lun (Independent) (appointed on 1 December 2009)

Dr Helmut Gunter Wilhelm Panke (Independent) (appointed on 1 September 2009)

2 Arrangements to Enable Directors to Acquire Shares And Debentures

Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time dunng that finanoal year, did there subsist any
arrangements to which the Company Is a party, whereby directors might acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares and share options n, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,
other than pursuant to the Singapore Airhnes Limited Employee Share Option Plan, the Singapore Airlines
Limited Restricted Share Plan and the Singapore Airlines Limited Performance Share Plan

3 Directors’ Interests In Ordinary Shares, Share Options And Debentures

The following directors who held office at the end of the financial year have, according to the register of
directors’ shareholdings required to be kept under Section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50,
interests in the following ordinary shares, share options and debentures of the Company, and of related

companies;

Direct interest Deemed interest

1 4 2009/ 14 2009/

date of date of
Name of Director appointment 31 32010  appointment 31 3 2010
Interest in Singapore Airlines Limited
Ordinary shares
Stephen Lee Ching Yen 9,400 9,400 - -
Chew Choon Seng 218,500 277852 - -
Wilhlam Fung Kwok Lun - - - 200,000
Euleen Goh Yu Kiang 3,800 3,800 - -
James Koh Cher Siang 3,800 3,800

Lucien Wong Yuen Kuai 58,000 58,000

Options to subscnbe for ordinary shares

Chew Choon Seng 1,194,000 1,074,000 - -

Conditional award_of restricted shares (Note 1)

Chew Choon Seng - Base Awards 100,215 100,800 - -
- Final Awards (Pending Release) 18,472 38,854 - -




Page 2 of 92
Directors’ Interests In Ordinary Shares, Share Options And Debentures (continued)
Direct interest Deemed interest
1 4 2009/ 1.4.2009/
date of date of
Name of Director appointment 31 32010  appointment 31 3 2010
onditional award of performance shares (Note 2
Chew Choon Seng - Base Awards 134,625 173,483 - -

Interest in SIA Engineering Company Limited

Ordinary shares
Chew Choon Seng 20,000 20,000 -

Lucien Wong Yuen Kua - 112,000
Interest in Singapore Airport Terminal Services Limited

Ordinary shares

Chew Choon Seng 10,000 NAX - NA¥*
Lucien Wong Yuen Kual - NA* 117,000 N.A *
Interest in Singapore Telecommunications Limited

Ordinary shares

Stephen Lee Ching Yen 130 190 190 190
Chew Choon Seng 10,500 10,500 - -
Euleen Goh Yiu Kiang 1,537 1,537 - -
James Koh Cher Siang 10,679 10,679 990 990
Lucien Wong Yuen Kuan 1,680 1,680 1,540 1,540

Interest in SMRT Corporation Limited

Ordinary shares

Chew Choon Seng 50,000 50,000 - -
James Koh Cher Siang 5,000 5,000 - -
Lucien Wong Yuen Kual - - 210,000 226,000

Interest in Neptune Orient Lines Limited

Ordinary shares

Stephen Lee Ching Yen 30,000 30,000 - -
Euleen Goh Yiu Kiang 2,000 2,000 - -
James Koh Cher Siang 6,632 13,000 6,000 11,000
Lucien Wong Yuen Kual - - 60,000

Interest in Mapletree Logistics Trust
Units
James Koh Cher Siang 177,250 177,250 - -

Interest in SP AusNet

Ordinary shares
James Koh Cher Siang 4,000 5,000 - -

Interest in StarHub Ltd

Ordinary shares
Lucien Wong Yuen Kual - - - 20,000

Interest in Singapore Technologies Engineering Limited

Ordinary shares
Lucien Wong Yuen Kual 216,000 255,000 20,000 20,000

Options to subscnibe for ordinary shares
Lucen Wong Yuen Kual 103,500 64,500 - -

Notes:

i Tne actual number of RSP Final Awards of fully paid ordinary shares will range from 0% to 150% of the Base Awards and
1s contingent on the Achievements against Targets over the two-year performance penods relating to the relevant awards

2 The actual number of PSP Finaf Awards of fully paid ordinary shares will range from 0% to 200% of the Base Awards and
1s contingent on the Achievernents against Targets over the three-year performance periods relating to the relevant awards

* Singapore Airport Terminal Services Limited ("SATS") ceased to be a related corporation of the Company on 1
September 2009
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Directors’ Interests In Ordinary Shares, Share Options And Debentures (continued)

Except as disclosed in this report, no other director who held office at the end of the financial year had
interests in ordinary shares, share options or debentures of the Company, or of related companies, either
at the beginning of the finanaal year or at the end of the financial year.

Between the end of the financial year and 21 Apnl 2010, Mr Lucien Wong Yuen Kual's deemed nterest in

SIA Engineering Company Limited and SMRT Corporation Ltd increased to 142,000 shares and 394,000
shares respectively.

Except as disclosed above, there were no changes in any of the above-mentiocned interests between the
end of the financial year and 21 April 2010

Directors’ Contractual Benefits

Except as disclosed in the financial statements, since the end of the previous financial year, no director of
the Company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the
Company or a related company with the director, or with a firm of which the director 1s a member, or with
a company In which the director has a substantial financial interest,

Equity Compensation Plans of the Company

The Company has in place, the Singapore Airhnes Limited Employee Share Option Plan ("ESOP®),
Restricted Share Plan ("RSP”) and Performance Share Plan ("PSP™).

At the date of this report, the Board Compensation & Industnal Relations Committee which admimisters
the ESOP, RSP and PSP comprises the fellowing directors:

Stephen Lee Ching Yen — Chairman
David Michael Gonski

James Koh Cher Siang
Dr Helmut Gunter Wilhelm Panke (appointed on 1 September 2009)

(N Employee Share Option Plan ("ESOP™)
Detalls of the ESOP are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

At the end of the financial year, options to take up 52,411,320 unissued shares in the Company were
outstandming:

Number of options to subscrbe for unissued ordinary shares

Balance at Balance at Exercise
Date of grant 14 2005 Cancetled Exercised 31 3.2010 prce * Exercisable period
28 3 2000 4,337,331 (836,929) {3,500,402) - $13.13 28 3 2001 - 27 3 2010
372000 4,605,445 (349,940) (595,980) 3,659,525 $14 44 3.7.2001 - 272010
272001 2316418 (144,785) (307,570) 1,864,063 $575 272002- 172011
17 2002 3,406,111 (124,000} (358,222) 2,923,889 $i06l 172003 - 30 6 2012
172003 2,524,376 (118,271) (419,157) 1,986,948 $813 17 2004 - 30 6 2013
17 2004 4,219,687 (130,323} (678,793) 3,410,571 $849 17.2005 - 30 6 2014
17 2005 7,441,664 (63,850) (1,014,651) 6,363,163 $9 07 17 2006 - 30 6 2015
372006 10,136,708 {113,273) (1,429,299) 8,594,136 $1039 372007 - 272016
27 2007 11,752,920 (307,420) (950) 11,444,550 $16 51 272008 - 1.7 2017

172008 12,642,832 (354,304 (124,053) 12,164,475 $1312 172009 ~306 2018
63,383,492 (2,543,095 8,429,077 52,411,320

+  Followming approval by the Company’s shareholders of the declaration of a speaa! dividend of $0 50 on 31 July 2007, the Board
Compensation & Industnal Relations Committee approved a reduction of $0 50 in the exercise prices of the share ophtons
outstanding on 2 August 2007 The said Committee approved anather $1 71 reduction in the exerase pnces of the share
optiens outstanding on 28 August 2009 following approvat by the Company’s shareholders of the dnvidend m specie of SATS
shares on 31 July 2009 The exercise prces reflected here are the exercise prices after such adjustment
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Equity Compensation Plans of the Company (continued)
() Employee Share Option Plan ("ESOP”) (continued)
The details of options granted to and exercised by directors of the Company-
Aggregate Aggregate
options granted opttons exercised Aggregate
Exerose pnce for since since ophions
Options granted  options granted commencement commencement outstanding at
dunng finanoal  dunng finanoa!l of scheme to end of scheme to end end of financial
year under year under of financial year  of financat year Options year under
Name of parbapant review review under review under review lapsed review
Chew Choon Seng - - 1,194,000 120,000 - 1,074,000

No options have been granted to cantroliing shareholders or their associates, or parent group employees.

The options granted by the Company do not entitle the holders of the options, by virtue of such holding,
to any nights to participate in any share issue of any other company.

The last grant of the share options under the ESOP was made n July 2008.

{m Restncted Share Plan ("RSP™) and Performance Share Plan (“PSP”

Details of the RSP and PSP are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

The RSP and PSP were approved by the shareholders of the Company on 28 July 2005.

Under the RSP and PSP, a base number of condittonal share awards (“Base Award™) I1s granted to eligible
partiapants annually. Depending on the achievement of pre-determined targets over a two-year
performance penod for the RSP and a three-year performance penod for the PSP, the Board
Compensation & Industrial Relations Committee will determine an achievement factor which will then be
applied to the Base Award to determine the final number of RSP shares and PSP shares to be awarded at
the end of the respective performance penods (“Final Award”). The achievement factor could range from
0% to 150% for the RSP and from 0% to 200% for the PSP

Half of the RSP Final Awards of fully paid ordinary shares will be released to the participants upon vesting.
The balance will be released equally over the subsequent two years with fulfilment of service
requirements All the PSP Final Awards of fully paid ordinary shares will be released to the participants at
the end of the three-year performance perod

No awards have been granted to controlling shareholders or their associates, or parent group employees
under the RSP and PSP

Pursuant to the dwidend 7 specre of shares in SATS, RSP Base Awards and Final Awards granted from
2006 to 2009 as well as PSP Base Awards granted from 2007 to 2009, have been increased by 12% to
adjust for the drop in value of the share awards. The adjustments have been verfied by Ernst & Young

LLP, the auditors of the Company and approved by the Board Compensation & Industrial Refations
Committee.

No employee has received 5% or more of the total number of options/awards granted under the ESOP,
RSP and PSP.
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Equity Compensation Plans of the Company (continued)

(n) Restricted Share Plan ("RSP™) and Performance Share Plan ("PSP™) (continued)

The details of the shares awarded under RSP and PSP to directors of the Company are as follows:

1 RSP Base Awards
Aggregate Base
Awards granted since
Base Awards Adjustment commencement of
Balance as granted Base Awards ansing from  Balance as RSP to end of
at dunng the vested dunng dvidend /7 at 31 March financial year under
Name of Particpant 1 Apnl 2009 finanaal year  the finanaial year specre* 2010 review
Chew Choon Seng 100,215 36,000 46,215 10,800 100,800 177,825
2. RSP Final Awards (Pending Release) **
Aggregate ordinary
shares released to
paracipant since
Final Awards Adjustment commencement of
Balance as granted Final Awards ansing from Balance as RSP to end of
at dunng the released dunng dividend /7 at 31 March financial year under
Name of Parbicipant 1 Apri 2009 finanaial year*  the finanaal year spacts® 2010 review
Chew Choon Seng 18,472 50,840 34,620 4,162 38,854 53,120
3. PSP Base Awards ©
Aggregate
Aggregate Base ordinary shares
Base Base Awards granted released to
Awards Awards since  participant since
Balance granted vested  Adjustment Balance as  commencement  commencement
as at during the duning the  ansing from at31 cof PSPtoendof  of PSP to end of
1 April finanaa financial dvdend # March financial year financial year
Name of Parbcipant 2009 year year” spece* 2010 under review under review
Chew Choon Seng 134,625 48,000 27,729 18,587 173,483 201,212 20,796

M The actual number of RSP Final Awards of fully paid ordinary shares will range from 0% to 150% of the Base Awards and s
contingent on the Achnevements against Targets over the two-year performance penods relating to the relevant awards

R The actual number of PSP Final Awards of fuilly paid ordinary shares will range from 0% to 200% of the Base Awards and IS
conbingent on the Achievements against Targets over the three-year performance periods relating to the relevant awards

* Ansing from the dividend 7 specie of shares 1n SATS on 1 September 2009

* Final Awards granted dunng the financial year 1s determined by applying the achievement factor to the Base Awards that have
vested dunng the finanaal year

* 20,796 PSP Final Awards of SIA ordinary shares were released to Mr Chew pursuant to the vesting of 27,729 PSP Base Awards
dunng the finanaal year

Equity Compensation Plans of Subsidiary Company
)] SIA Enagineering Company Limited ("SIAEC™) Employee Share Option Plan

At the end of the financial year, options to take up 56,666,363 unissued shares in SIAEC were
cutstanding. Detais and terms of the options have been disclosed in the Directors’ Report of SIA
Engineenng Company Limited.

() SIAEC RSP and SIAEC PSP

Details and terms of the SIAEC RSP and SIAEC PSP have been disclosed in the Directors’ Report of SIA
Engineerning Company Linuted.
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7 Audit Committee
The Audit Committee petrformed the functions specified in the Singapere Companies Act. The functions
performed are detalled in the Report on Corporate Governance

8 Auditors
The auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, Certified Pubhc Accountants, have expressed their willingness to accept

re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board,

'

STEPHEN LEE CHING YEN
Chairman

CHEW CHOON SENG
Chief Executive Officer

Dated this 21st day of May 2010
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STATEMENT BY THE DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO SECTION 201(15)

We, Stephen Lee Ching Yen and Chew Choon Seng, being two of the directors of Singapore Airines Limited, do
hereby state that in the opinion of the directors:

)] the accompanying statements of financial posttion, consohdated profit and loss account,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, statements of changes Iin equity, and
consolidated statement of cash flows together with notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 March 2010
and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the Group and the changes in equity of the
Company for the financial year ended on that date; and

(n at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due

On behalf of the Board,

1

STEPHEN LEE CHING YEN
Chairman

CHEW CHOON SENG
Chief Executive Officer

Dated this 21st day of May 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SINGAPORE AIRLINES LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Arlines Limited (the “Company™) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages 9 to 91, which compnse the statements of financial
position of the Group and the Company as at 31 March 2010, the statements of changes in equity of the Group
and the Company and the consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting pohaes and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management s responsible for the preparation and far presentation of these financial statements m accordance
with the provisions of the Singapore Compantes Act, Cap 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards. This responstbility includes devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient
to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition;
and transactions are properly authonsed and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of
true and fair profit and loss account and balance sheet and to maintain accountablity of assets; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable i the
circumstances

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility 15 to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our
audit i accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement,

An audtt involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
nsk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opmnion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control An audit also includes
evaluating the appropnateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opmnion

Opimon
In our opinion,

Q)] the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and statement
of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act
and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the Company as at 31 March 2010 and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Group and the changes in equity of the Company for the year ended cn that date; and

() the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by those
subsidianes incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

B Lo sar

ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Public Accountants and
Certified Public Accountants

Dated this 21st day of May 2010
Singapore
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the financial year ended 31 March 2010 (in $ million)
The Group
Notes 2009-10 2008-03
REVENUE 12,707 3 15,996 3
EXPENDITURE
Staff costs 5 2,159 4 25459
Fuel costs 4,194 5 6,408 4
Depreciation 19,21 1,713 8 1,649 7
Impawrment of property, plant and equipment 19 61 41 4
Amortisation of intangible assets 20 427 455
Asrcraft maintenance and overhaul costs 342 4 3816
Commission and incentives 3165 3945
Landing, parking and overflying charges 588 6 656 9
Handling charges 7849 580 7
Rentals on leased aircraft 5529 487 8
Matenal costs 375.4 3853
Inflight meals 3477 2310
Advertising and sales costs 2103 240.3
Insurance expenses 576 60 4
Company accommodation and utihities 1420 187 2
Other passenger costs 1304 146 7
Crew expenses 153 4 1847
Cther operating expenses 5255 464 7
12,644 1 15,092 7
OPERATING PROFIT & 632 9036
Finance charges 7 (68 9) (897
Interest income 8 495 9% 0
Surplus on disposal of aircraft, spares and spare engines 254 606
Dvidends from long-term investments, gross 33.0 237
Cther non-operating items 9 342 294
Share of profits of joint venture companies 24 561 639
Share of profits of associated companies 930 1111
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 2855 1,1986
TAXATION 10
Taxation expense (6 0} {190 O)
Adjustment for reduction in Singapore statutory tax rate - 138 2
{6 0) {51 8)
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2795 1,146 8
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 2158 10615
MINORITY INTERESTS 637 853
279 5 1146 8
BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (CENTS) 11 182 896
DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (CENTS) 11 180 891

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the financial year ended 31 March 2010 (in $ million)

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Currency translation differences
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
Cash flow hedges
Surplus on dilution of interest in subsidiary
companies due to share options exercised
Surplus on dilution of interest in an associated
company due to 1ts public hsting and share opbons exercised
Share of comprebensive expense of
associated and joint venture companes
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
MINORITY INTERESTS
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The Group
2009-10 2008-09

2795 1,146 8
(311) 86
160 (59
5095 (855 6)
73 88

805 -
{16 9) (248 3)
5593 (10924
8388 54 4
7796 (55 1)
59 2 1095
838 8 54 4

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.




STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
At 31 March 2010 (in $ million)

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
Share capital
Treasury shares
Capital reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve
Share-based compensation reserve
Fair value reserve
General reserve

MINORITY INTERESTS
TOTAL EQUITY

DEFERRED ACCOUNT
DEFERRED TAXATION
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Represented by.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Aurcraft, spares and spare engines
Land and buldings
Others

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventones
Trade debtors
Deposits and other debtors
Prepayments
Amounts owing by subsidiary companies
Amounts owing by associated companies
Investments
Cash and bank balances

Less, CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sales in advance of carnage
Deferred revenue
Current tax payable
Trade and other creditors
Amounts owing to subsidiary companies
Amounts owing to associated companies
Finance lease commitments
Loans
Notes payable
Provisions
Bank overdrafts

NET CURRENT ASSETS / (LIABILITIES)

Notes

13
15 (a)
15 (b)

15 (¢}
15 (d)

16

i8

19

Page 11 of 92

The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
1,750.6 1,684 8 1,750 6 1,684 8
(09) (44 4) (09) (44 4)
748 863 25 G7N
(137 0) (137 9) - -
1853 1873 1479 1350
{140 9} (660 8) (85 3) (496 0)
11,737 0 12,8153 11,6685 11,623 3
13,468 9 13,9306 13,4833 12,899 0
280 4 559 8 - -
13,749 3 14,490 4 13,483 3 12,899 0
4807 6739 443 9 5823
2,296 6 2,2220 19956 1,8159
14381 1,513 5 10331 988 1
17,964 7 18,899 8 16,9059 16,2853
13,007 4 13,0425 10,7395 10,6701
2536 7326 1058 1150
1,802 9 2,217 3 15201 1,7801
15,063 9 15,992 4 123654 12,569 2
808 5530 550 64.9

- 70 - -

- - 1,805 8 1,780 8
5326 8553 1,715.7 1,7198
108 6 1275 - -

353 432 188 188
114.4 403 6 1144 3916
4295 5032 3098 3387

1,347 8 14855 9580 9949

663 2419 419 2076

926 1019 820 77 8

- - 1410 284 6

- 0 4 - -
140 6 6556 800 587 6

4,471 9 3,848 0 42607 3,458 0
6,548 7 6,8365 58734 5,949 2
1,3380 1,143 6 1,301 9 1,111 6
460 1 5008 460 1 5008
120 8 348 ¢ 96.5 2726
2,498.7 3,5815 1,876 6 2,6920

- - 1,2980 1,597 8

20 06 - -

645 669 - -

- 327 - -

- 2000 - -

355 353 95 267

- 93 - 75

4,519 6 5,918.7 50426 6,209 0
2,029 1 917.8 8308 {259 8)
17,964 7 18,899.8 16,9059 16,285 3

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for-
Depreciation
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment of trade debtors
Income from short-term investments
Share-based compensation expense
Exchange differences

Finance charges
Interest mcome
Surplus on disposal of aircraft, spares and spare engines
Surplus on disposal of non-current assets
Dividends from long-term investments, gross
Other non-operating items
Share of profits of joint venture companies
Share of profits of associated companies
Operating profit before working capital changes

Decrease In trade and other creditors
Increase/{Decrease) 1n sales in advance of carnage
({Increase)/Decrease in trade debtors
Decrease/(Increase) in deposits and other debtors
Decrease in prepayments

Decrease in inventones

{Decrease)/Increase in deferred revenue

Decrease m amounts owing by associated companies
Increase/(Decrease) in amounts owing to associated companies
Cash generated from operations

Income taxes pad

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure
Purchase of intangible assets

Disposal/(Purchase) of short-term investments
Proceeds from sale of non-equity investments
Investments In associated companes
Investments in companies pending incorporation
Acquisitton of minornty interests
Acquisttion of subsidiary companies, net of cash acquired
Disposal of a subsidiary company
Repayment of loans by associated companies
Proceeds from disposal of shares in a subsidiary company
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets
Dividends received from associated and jomnt venture companies
Dividends recerved from investments
Interest receved from investments and deposits
Interest recerved on loans to associated companies

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

For the financial year ended 31 March 2010 (in $ million)

Amortisation of deferred gain on sale and operating leaseback transactions

Proceeds from disposal of aircraft and other property, plant and equipment
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The Group
Notes 2009-10 2008-08
2855 1,198.6
19, 21 1,713 8 16497
19 61 41 4
20 427 45.5
- 123
6 (16) (17
5 435 686
(20) 34
64 {86 1)
7 689 897
8 (49 5} (96 0)
(25 4) (60 6)
- (21)
(330 (237
9 (34 2) (29 4)
24 (56.1) (63 9)
(93.0) (111 1)
1,801 ¢ 2,627 8
(40 %) (516 5)
194 4 (536 7)
(6 6) 4286
157 8 (160 3)
06 30
24 2 56 5
(40 7) 651
- 01
14 (06)
2,091 2 19670
(125 0) (300 0)
1,966 2 1,667 0
34 (1,560 3) (2,031 1)
(33 8) (21 6)
168 5 893.3
5334 (221 6)
- 136
(1.0) -
- (39)
- (0 &)
- (457 8)
22 {301 9) -
45 28
- 03
- 52
163 6 1343
337 24.5
307 84.6
- 98
(962.6) {1,568 2)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the financial year ended 31 March 2010 (in $ million)

Notes

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends pad
Dividends paid by subsidiary companies to minority interests
Interest paid
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Repayment of long-term finance lease commitments
Proceeds from 1ssuance of share capital by subsidiary companies
to mmority interests
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Purchase of treasury shares

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CASH INFLOW/{OUTFLOW)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF FINANCIAL YEAR
Effect of exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Fixed deposits 3
Cash and bank 31
Bank overdrafts 33
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR
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The Group
200%9-10 2008-09

(236 9) (1,185 8)
(49 4) (74 4)
(66 2) (69 8)
21 19
(25 0) (15 2)
(66 9) (54 8)
10 88
1057 506
- {64.1)
(335 6) (1,402 B)
6680 (1,304 0)
3,8387 51190
(34 8) 237
4,471 9 3,8387
4,069 8 3,540 8
402 1 307 2
- {93)
4,471 9 3,8387

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- 31 March 2010

1

General

Singapore Arrlines Limited ("the Company”) i1s a limited liability company incorporated in the Republic of
Singapore which 1s also the place of domicle. The Company is listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited ("SGX-ST") and 1s a subsidiary company of Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited,
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore

The registered office of the Company 1s at Airine House, 25 Airline Road, Singapore 819829,
The principal activities of the Group consist of passenger and cargo air transportation, airport terminal
and food operations, engineering services, training of pilots, air charters and tour wholesaling and related

activities. The principal activity of the Company consists of passenger air transportation.

Following the completion of the dwvidend /7 specre distnbution of SATS shares on 1 September 2009, the
Group's principal activities 1n airport terminal and food operations ceased accordingly.

The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2010 were authorised for issue 1n
accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 21 May 2010.
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group and the Company and are consistent
with those used in the previous financial year.

(a) Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group and the statement of financial position and
statement of changes in equity of the Company have been prepared n accordance with
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards ("FRS").

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in
the accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars (SGD or $) and all values in the
tables are rounded to the nearest million as indicated.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

New and revised standards

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as
follows

1Y
On 1 Apnil 2009, the Group adopted the following standards and interpretations mandatory for
annual financal pertods beginming on or after 1 Apnil 2009.

* FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised)

*  Amendments to FRS 23 Borrowing Costs

* Amendments to FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and FRS 1 Presentation of

Financial Statements — Puttable Financtal Instruments and Obligations Artsing on Liquidation

» Amendments to FRS 101 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards and FRS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements — Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Assoaiate

Amendments to FRS 102 Share-based Payment — Vesting Condibions and Cancellations

Amendments to FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

FRS 108 Qperating Segments

Improvements to FRSs 1ssued in 2008

INT FRS 113 Customer Loyalty Programmes

INT FRS 116 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Amendments to INT FRS 109 Reassessment of Embedded Dervatives and FRS 39 Financial
Instruments. Recognition and Measurement — Embedded Dervatives

« INT FRS 118 Transfers of Assets from Customers

Adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the finanaal
performance or position of the Group They did however give rise to addibional disclosures.

The principal effects of these changes are as follows:

FRS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements

The revised FRS 1 separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes
in equity includes only details of transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in equity
presented in the statement of other comprehensive income., In addition, the revised standard
introduces the statement of comprehensive income which presents income and expense
recognised in the period. This statement may be presented in one single statement, or two linked
statements. The Group has elected to present this statement as two linked statements.

Amendments to FRS 107' Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

The amendments to FRS 107 require addibonal disclosure about far value measurement and
hquidity risk. Fair value measurements are to be disclosed by source of inputs using a three level
hierarchy for each class of financral instrument. In addition, reconciliabion between the beginning
and ending balance for Level 3 far value measurements 1s now required, as well as significant
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 farr value measurements. The amendments also clanfy the
requirements for liquidity risk disclosures. The fair value measurement disclosures and hquidity
nisk disclosures are presented in Note 37(b) and Note 38(e) to the financial statements
respectively.

FRS 108; Operating Segments

FRS 108 requrres disclosure of information about the Group’s operating segments and replaces
the requirement to determine primary and secondary reporting segments of the Group. As a
resuit of the adoption of FRS 108, the identification of the Group's reportable segments has
changed. On top of the existing business segments previously identfied under FRS 14: Segment
Reporting, an additionai segment has been identified. Additional disclosures about each of the
segments are shown in Note 4, including revised comparative information.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

New and revised standards (continued)

INT FRS 113: Customer Loyslty Programmes

The interpretation addresses accounting for loyalty award credits granted to customers who buy
other goods or services, and the accounting for the Company's obligations to provide free or
discounted goods or services to customers when the award credits are redeemed

Loyalty awards should be viewed as separately identifiable goods or services for which customers
are implicitly paying and measured based an the allocated proceeds which represent the value of
the award credits. The proceeds allocated to the award credits are deferred untif the Company

fulfils its obligations by supplying the free or discounted goods or services upon the redemption of
the award credits.

The adoption of this interpretation did not resuit in a change in accounting policy of the Company
as the current accounting treatment of the Company’s award credits granted under the frequent
flyer programme ("KnisFlyer”) is closely aligned with the treatment as set out In the interpretation.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following FRS, INT FRS and
amendments to FRS were 1ssued but not effective.

Effective date
{Annual penods
beginning on
Reference Description or after)
Improvements to FRSs 1 July 2009
(unless otherwise
stated)
FRS 24 Revised Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011
FRS 27 Amendments Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 1 July 2009
FRS 32 Amendments  Financial Instruments Presentation — 1 February 2010
Classification of Rights Issues
FRS 39 Amendments  Financial Instruments: Recognition and 1 July 2009
Measurement - Eligible Hedged Items
FRS 102 Amendments  Share-based Payment — Group Cash-settled 1 January 2010
Share-based Payment Transactions
FRS 103 Revised Business Combinations 1 July 2009
INT FRS 114 Amendments FRS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, 1 January 2011
Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement
INT FRS 117 New Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners 1 July 2009
INT FRS 119 New Extinguishing Financial Liabilittes with Equity 1 July 2010
Instruments

The management expects that the adoption of the above pronouncements will have no material
impact to the financial statements in the period of initial apphcation except for the following:

Revised FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures

The revised FRS 24 expands the definition of a related party and would treat two entities as
refated to each other whenever a person (or a close member of that person’s family) or a third
party entity has controf or joint contral over the entity, or has significant influence over the entity.
The Group I1s currently determining the impact of the expanded definttion has on the disclosure of
related party transactions. As this I1s a disclosure standard, it wili have no impact on the financial
position or financial performance of the Group when implemented n 2011,
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

(<)

New and revised standards (continued)

Revised FRS 103: Business Combinations and Amendments to FRS 27: Consolidated and Separate
Finangjal Statements

The revised FRS 103 introduces a number of changes in the accounting for business combinations
occurrng after 1 July 2009, These changes will impact the amount of goodwill recognised, the
reported results in the period that an acquisiion occurs, and future reported results. The
Amendments to FRS 27 require that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary company
(without loss of control) 1s accounted for as an eguity transaction Therefore, such transactions
will no longer give nise to goodwill, nor will they give nse to a gan or loss  Furthermore, the
amended standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary company as well
as the loss of control of @ subsidiary company. Other consequential amendments were made to
FRS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, FRS 12 Income Taxes, FRS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates, FRS 28 Investments in Associates and FRS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. The
changes from revised FRS 103 and Amendments to FRS 27 will affect future acquisitions or loss of
control and transactions with minonty interests. The standards may be early applied However,
the Group does not intend to early adopt.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the separate financal statements of the Company
and its subsidiary companies as at the end of the reporting period The financial statements of
the subsidiary companies used In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. Consistent accounting policies are applied
for like transactions and events in similar arcumstances. A lst of the Group’s subsidiary
companies Is shown in Note 22 to the financial statements.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from
mtra-group transactions are elimmnated in full.

Acquisitions of subsidiary companies are accounted for using the purchase method. Identfiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent habiibes assumed In a business combination are
measured nibally at their far values at the acquisiion date. Adjustments to those fair values
relating to previously held interests are treated as a revaluation and recognised in equity. Any
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group's share in the net fair value of the
acquired subsidiary company’s identifiable assets, labihties and contingent liabilities 1s recorded as
goodwill on the statement of financial pesition. The accounting policy for goodwill is set out in
Note 2(e)()) Any excess of the Group’s share In the net fair value of the acquired subsidiary
company’s identifiable assets, habilities and contingent labilities over the cost of the bustness
combination 1s recognised in the profit and loss account on the date of acquisition.

Subsidiary companies are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consclidated until the date that such control ceases,

Minority interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiary companies
not held by the Group and are presented separately in the conschdated profit and loss account
and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial posiion, separately from equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company. On acquisition of minority interests, the difference
between the consideration and book value of the share of the net assets acquired is reflected as
being a transaction between owners and recognised directly in equity. Gain or loss on disposal to
minority interests 1s recognised directly in equity.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiary, associated and joint venture companies

In the Company’s separate financial statements, investment in subsidiary and associated
companies are accounted for at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

A subsidiary company 15 defined as an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its actvittes, generally accompanied
by a shareholding giving rise to the majonty of the voting nghts.

An associated company Is defined as an entity, not being a subsidiary company or joint venture
company, in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, generally accompanied by
a shareholding giving nise to not less than 20% of the voting nghts. A list of the Group's
associated companies is shown in Note 23 to the financial statements,

The Group's investments 1n assoctated companies are accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment in associated company 1s measured in the statement of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the
associated company. Goodwill relating to an associated company 1s included in the carrying
amount of the investment., Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the associated
company’s identifiable assets, habihtes and contingent habilities over the cost of investment I1s
deducted from the carrying amount of the investment and 1s recognised as income as part of the
Group’s share of profit or loss of the associated company in the period in which the investment 1s
acquired.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associated company equals or exceeds its interest in the
associated company, the Group does not recogrise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments cn behalf of the associated company.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it 1s necessary to recognise
an additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associated companies. The Group
determines at the end of each reporting pericd whether there 1s any objective evidence that the
investment in the associated company 1s impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the
amount of impaiment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associated
company and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the profit or loss.

A joint venture company 1s a contractual arrangement whereby two ot more parties undertake an
economic activity that 15 subject to joint control, where the strategic financial and operating
decisions relating to the actmvity require the unaimous consent of the parties sharing control. A
list of the Group’s joint venture companies I1s shown in Note 24 to the financral statements.

The Group’s share of the resuits of the joint venture companies Is recogmised in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method on the same basts as associated companies.

The most recently avallable audited financial statements of the associated and joint venture
companies are used by the Group in applying the equity method. Where the dates of the audited
financial statements used are not co-terminous with those of the Group, the share of results Is
arnved at from the last audited financial statements available and unaudited management
financial statements to the end of the accounting period. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to bning the accounting policies in ine with those of the Group.

Intangible assets
(1) Goodwill

Goodwill acquired In a business combination is iniially measured at cost being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, labilites and contingent habilities. Following initial recognition, goodwill 15 measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment, at ieast
annually or more frequently If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

(e)

Intangible assets (continued)
(i) Goodwill (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination 1s, from the
acquisiion date, aliocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units ("CGU™), or groups of
CGUs, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
cther assets or habilities of the Group are assigned to those umits or groups of units

The CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwili has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually and whenever there 1s an indication that the CGU may be impaired, by comparing the
carrying amount of the CGY, including the allocated goodwll, with the recoverable amount of the
CGU. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU (or group of CGUs) Is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss 1s recognised In the profit and loss account. Impairment losses
recognised for goodwill are not reversed in subseguent periods.

Where goodwill forms part of a CGU (or group of CGUs) and part of the operation within that urit
15 disposed of, the goodwill assotiated with the operation disposed of 1s included n the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this crcumstance is measured based on the relative fair values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the CGU retained

(ii) Computer software

Computer software acquired separately 1s measured initially at cost. Following initial acquisition,
computer software i1s stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, If any. These costs are amortised using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives of 1 to 5 years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
computer software may be impaired. The amortisation peried and method are reviewed at least
annuafly.

{iii) Brands, customer relationships and licences

Brands, customer relationships and licences are acquired in a business combination The useful
lives of some of the brands acquired are estimated to be indefinite because based on the current
market share of the brands, the management believes there 1s no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the brands are expected to generate net cash inflows for the Group. Simdarly, for
some of the licences, the useful lives are estimated to be indefinte. For those brands and
licences with finte lives, they are measured at cost less accumulated amorbisation and
accumulated 1mpairment losses. These intangible assets are amertised In the profit and loss
account on a straight-line basis over therr estimated useful lives as follows:

Brands -- 17 years
Customer relationships — 3Syears
Licences -~ 14 years

{iv) Deferred engine development cost

This relates to the Group’s share of engine development payments made in connection with rts
participation in aircraft engine development projects with other companies. Amortisation of such
intangibles begins only when the aircraft engines are avalable for sale. These deferred engine
development costs are amortised on a straight line basis over the period of expected sales of the
aircraft engenes, which 15 estimated to be over a period of 20 years. The amortsation period and
amortisation method would be reviewed annually in lght of expenence and changing
arcumstances, and adjusted prospectively, as appropniate at the end of each reporting period
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

"

(9)

Foreign currencies

The management has determined the currency of the prnmary economic environment in which the
Company operates 1.e., functional currency, to be SGD Sales pnices and major costs of providing
goods and services including major operating expenses are pnmanly influenced by fluctuations in
SGD.

Forexgn currency transactions are converted into SGD at exchange rates which approximate bank
rates prevailing at dates of transactions.

All foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into SGD using year-end
exchange rates. Non-monetary assets and habilities that are measured n terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the nmial
transactions. Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Gains and losses ansing from conversion of monetary assets and habilities are taken to the profit
and loss account.

For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the net assets of the foreign subsidiary,
assoctated and joint venture companies are translated into SGD at the exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. The financial results of foreign subsidiary, associated and joint
venture companies are transfated monthly into SGD at the prevaiing exchange rates The
resuiting gans or losses on exchange are recognised nitiaity in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arnsing from the acquisition of foreign operations on or after
1 April 2005 are treated as assets and habiliies of the foreign operations and are recorded in the
functronal currency of the foreign operations, and translated into SGD at the closing rate at the
end of the reporting perod.

Goodwill and farr value adjustments which arose on acquisitions of foreign operations before 1
April 2005 are deemed to be assets and liabilities of the Group and are recorded in SGD at the
rates prevalling at the dates of acquisition.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of exchange differences deferred In
equity relating to that foreign operation 1s recognised in the proftt and loss account as a
component of the gain or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

All stems of property, plant and equipment are nitially recorded at cost. Subsequent to
recognition, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment 1s
recognised as an asset If, and only If, it s probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises Its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. The cost
of all aircraft I1s stated net of manufacturers’ credit. Aircraft and related equipment acquired on
an exchange basis are stated at amounts paid plus the fair value of the fixed asset traded-in.
Expenditure for heavy maintenance visits on aircraft and engine overhauls, 1s capitalised at cost.
Expenditure for engine overhaul costs covered by power-by-hour (fixed rate charged per hour)
maintenance agreements 15 capitalised by hours flown. Expenditure for other maintenance and
repaws 1s charged to the profit and loss account When assets are sold or retired, ther costs,
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any, are removed from the
financial statements and any gain or loss resulting from therr disposal 1s included n the profit and
loss account.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Q)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-ine basis at rates which are
calculated to wnte-down ther cost to therr estmated residual values at the end of therr
operational lives  Operational lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
annually in the hght of experience and changing circumstances, and adjusted as appropriate at
the end of each reporting peniod.

Freehold land, advance and progress payments are not depreciated

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use.
No depreciation Is charged after assets are depreciated to their residual values.

(i) Aircraft, spares and spare engines

The Group depreciates Its new passenger aircraft, spares and spare engines over 15 years to
10% residual values. For used passenger arrcraft, the Group depreciates them over the
remaining bfe {15 years less age of aircraft) to 10% residual values.

The Group depreciates its new freighter arcraft over 15 years to 20% residual values. For used
freighter arrcraft, the Group depreciates them over the remaining life (15 years less age of
aircraft) to 20% residual value.

Major inspection costs relating to landing gear overhauls, heavy maintenance visits and engine
overhauls {including inspection costs provided under power-by-hour maintenance agreements)
are captalsed and depreciated over the average expected lfe between major overhauls,
estimated to be 4 to 10 years.

Flight simulators and training aircraft are depreciated over 10 years to nil residual values, and 5
years to 20% residual values respectively,

(ii) Land and buildings

Freehold buidings, leasehold land and buildings are depreciated to nil residual values as follows:

Company owned office premises -- according to lease percd or 30 years, whichever is
the shorter.

Company owned household premises  --  according to lease penod or 10 years, whichever 1s
the shorter,

Other premises -- according to lease period or 5 years, whichever |15
the shorter.

{(iit) Others

Plant and equipment, office and computer equipment are depreciated over 1 to 12 years to nil
residual values.

Investment properties

Investment properties are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation 1s provided on a straight-line basis so as to write off the cost of the leasehold
Investment properties over its estimated useful lives according to the lease period or 30 years
whichever is shorter.
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(i)

()

Investment properties {continued)

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the
investment property I1s permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit I1s
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the rebrement or disposal of an investment
property are recogrised tn the profit and loss account in the year of retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from owner occupied property to investment property, the property 15 accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment set out in Note
2(g) up to the date of change in use.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement Is, or contains a lease 1s based on the substance of
the arrangement at inception date: whether fulfilment of the arrangement 1s dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a nght to use the asset. For
arrangements entered into prior to 1 January 2005, the date of inception 1s deemed to be 1
January 2005 in accordance with the transitional requirements of INT FRS 104,

(i) Finance lease — as lessee

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the rsks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased asset, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the
leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments Any initial direct
costs are also added to the amount capitalised. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the rematning balance of the hability. Finance charges are charged directly against the profit and
loss account.

For sale and finance leaseback, differences between sales proceeds and net book values are
taken to the statement of financial position as deferred gain on sale and leaseback transactions,
included under deferred account and amortised over the mimimum lease terms.

Major improvements and modifications to leased aircraft due to operational requirements are
capitalised and depreciated over the average expected Iife between major overhauls (estimated to
be 4 to 6 years).

(ii) Operating lease — as lessee

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the leased assets are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as
an expense in the profit and loss account on a straight-hne basis over the lease term. The
aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor 15 recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a strarght-line bass.

Gains or losses arsing from sale and operating leaseback of aircraft are determined based on fair
values, Differences between sales proceeds and fair values are taken to the statement of
financial position as deferred gain on sale and leaseback transactions, included under deferred
account and amortised over the mimimum lease terms

Major improvements and modifications to leased awrcraft due to operational requirements are
capitalised and depreciated over the remaining lease term period or the average expected life
between ma)or overhauls (estimated to be 4 to 10 years).
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§))

(k)

L)

Leases (continued)
(iii) Operating lease — as lessor

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases Aircraft leased out under operating leases are included under
property, plant and equipment and are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated mpairment losses, If any Rental income 1s recognised on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost I1s determined on a
weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Waork-in-progress 15 stated at cost plus a proportion of estimated profit earned to-date, based on
the percentage of completion of the projects Cost compnses direct materials, direct labour and
other direct overheads. Anticipated losses, if any, are provided for in full as and when they are
determined

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial mstrument.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at far value, plus, in the case of
financial assets not at fair value through profit and loss, directly attnbutable transaction costs.

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual nght to receive cash flows from the asset
has expred On derecogmition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income 1s recognised In profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the
trade date, 1e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the peniod generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

There are two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated as fair value
through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset i1s classified in this category If acquired
pnnapally for the purpose of selling in the short term  Denvatives are also classified under this
category unless they are designated as hedging derivatives. Gains or losses on financial assets
held at fair value through profit and loss are recognised in the profit and loss account,

Assets in this category are classified as current assets If they are ether held for trading or are
expected to be realised within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

(ii} Loans and receivables

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as loans and receivables. Such assets are carred at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss
account when the loans and receivables are derecognised or imparred, as well as through the
amortisation process.
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M

(m)

(n)

(o)

()

Financial assets
(iii) Available-for-sale investments

Avallable-for-sale investments are non-dervative financial assets that are either designated in this
category, or not classified in any other categories. After initial recognition, available-for-sale
mnvestments are measured at far value with gamns or losses being recognised n other
cemprehensive income until the investment 1s derecognised or untii the investment 1s determined
to be impaired whereby the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity 1s included in the
profit and loss account.

Long-term investments

Long-term investments held by the Group are classified as avallable-for-sale. As there 15 no
active market for the trading of these investments and fair value cannot be reliably measured,
these investments are stated at cost The accounting policy for this category of financial assets 15
stated in Note 2(}).

Trade debtors and other receivables

Trade debtors, including amounts owing by subsidiary and associated compantes, deposits and
other debtors are classified and accounted for as loans and recevables. Other non-current
recevables are also classified and accounted for in the same way. The accounting policy for this
category of financial assets is stated in Note 2(1).

Further details on the accounting policy for tmpairment of financial assets are stated in Note 2(r)
below.

Investments

Short-term investments held by the Group are classified as available-for-sale and are stated at fair
values. Fair value 1s determined in the manner described in Note 37(b). For unquoted short-term
investments where there i1s no active market and where fair value cannot be reliably measured,
they are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The accounting policy for this
category of financial assets 15 stated in Note 2(1).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits in banks and short-term, highly iquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
msignificant nsk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of
cash on hand and deposits in banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts The accounting policy
for this category of financial assets I1s stated in Note 2(l), under loans and receivables.
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(q)

(r)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 1s an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment assessment for an asset Is
required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount

An asset’s recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset’s or CGU'’s fair value less costs to sell and
its value-in-use and i1s determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflews that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets In assessing
value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset I1s written down to its recoverable amount.

For non-financial assets excluding goodwill and those with indefinite lives, an assessment 1s made
at each reporting date as to whether there 15 any indicaton that previously recognised
mpairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised
impairment loss 1s reversed only If there has been a change In the esimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised  If that is the case,
the carrying amount of the asset 1s increased to s recoverable amount. That increase cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recogrised in the profit and loss
account unless the asset 1s measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal Is treated as
a revaluation increase.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group also assesses at the end of each reporting penod whether a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

If there 1s objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carred at amortised cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrytng amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s onginal effective interest
rate  The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced erther directly or through the use of an
allowance account. The impairment loss 15 recognised 1n the profit and loss account.

When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of the impaired financial asset 1s
reduced directly or If an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts charged to
the allowance account are wnitten off against the carrying value of the financial asset.

To determine whether there 1s objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has
been incurred, the Group considers factors such as the probabilty of insolvency or significant
financial difficuities of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the iImpairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment i1s reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal Is recognised In the profit
and loss account,

(ii) Assets carried at cost

If there 15 objective evidence (such as significant adverse changes in the business environment
where the issuer operates, probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the
1ssuer) that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss 1s measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment iosses are not reversed in subsequent periods.
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Q)

(s)

®)

(u)

Impairment of financial assets {continued)
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Significant or prolonged dechne in fair value below cost, significant financial difficulties of the
Issuer or obligor, and the disappearance of an active trading market are considerations to
determine whether there is objective evidence that investment secunties dassified as available-
for-sale financial assets are impatred.

If an available-for-sale asset i1s impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and its current far value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised n the profit and loss account, 1s transferred from equity to the profit
and loss account Reversals of impairment losses in respect of equity instruments are not
recognised 1n the profit and loss account. Reversals of impairment losses on debt instruments are
recognised through the profit and loss account If the increase n fair value of the debt instrument
can be objectively related to an event occurning after the impairment loss was recognised in the
profit and loss account.,

Financial liabilities .
Finanoal labilities are recognised on the statement of finanaal posiicn when, and only when, the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial lkabilittes are recognised mitially at fair value, plus, in the case of financial habilities other
than derivatives, directly attnbutable transaction costs.

Subsequent to imittal recogrition, derivatives are measured at fair value. Cther financial habilibes
(except for financial guarantee) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

A financial liability 1s derecognised when the obhgation under the liability is extinguished. When
an existing financial hability 1s replaced by another from the same lender on substantally different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modfied, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the oniginal hability and the recognition of a new
hability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts 1s recogrised in the profit or loss
account.

Loans, notes payable and borrowings

Loans, notes payahle and other borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration received less directly attnbutable transaction cests.  After imtal recognition,
interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other creditors

Trade and other creditors and amounts owing to subsidiary and associated companies are nitially
recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account when the labilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisabion process.
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v)

(w)

(x)

)

(2)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably. Where the Group
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement I1s recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement i1s virtually certain. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the profit and loss account net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate  If it 1s no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required
to settle the obligation, the prowvision s reversed. If the effect of the time value of money I1s
matenal, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate,
the nsks specific to the hability. Where discounting 1s used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time 1s recognised as a finance cost.

Provision for warranty claims 1s made for engine overhaul, repairs and maintenance of aircraft
(exduding hine maintenance) based on past expenence of the level of repairs.

Provision for return costs to meet contractual return aircraft minimum conditions, at the end of
the lease terms for the aircraft under operating leases, are recorded equally over the [ease terms.

Share capital and share issue expenses

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares are recognised as share capital in equity. Incremental
costs directly attrnibutable to the issuance of ordinary shares are deducted against share capital.

Treasury shares

When shares are reacquired by the Company, the amount of consideration paid s recogrised
directly in equity. Reacquired shares are classified as treasury shares and presented as a
deduction from total equity. When treasury shares are subsequently sold or reissued pursuant to
equity compensation plans, the cost of treasury shares 1s reversed from the treasury share
account and the realised gamn or loss on sale or reissue, net of any directdy attnbutable
incremental transaction costs, 1s recognised in the capital reserve.

Frequent flyer programme

The Company operates a frequent flyer programme called “KrisFlyer” that provides travel awards
to programme members based on accumulated mileage. A portion of passenger revenue
attributable to the award of frequent flyer benefits, estimated based on expected utilisation of
these benefits, 1s deferred until they are utlised. These are included under deferred revenue on
the statement of financal position. Any remaining unutilised benefits are recognised as revenue
upon expiry

Taxation

{i) Current tax

Tax recoverable and tax liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

the reporting period.

Current taxes are recognised in profit or Joss except to the extent that the tax relates to items
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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(2)

Taxation (continued)
(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided, using the hability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for aill temporary differences, except:

*  Where the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of
an asset or hability in a transaction that 1s not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary,
associated and joint venture compantes, where the tming of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it 1s probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit
will be avallable against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses ¢an be utiised except:

* Where the deferred income tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability n a transaction that 15 not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

= In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiary,
associated and joint venture companies, deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it 15 probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be avalable against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset i1s reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it 15 no longer probable that taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting penod and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realised or the liability 1s settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss Is recognised outside profit
or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction erther in
other comprehensive income or directly in equty and deferred tax ansing from a business
combination 1s adjusted agatnst goodwill on acquisition

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax habilities are offset, If a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets agamnst current income tax habilibes and the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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(aa)

(ab)

(ac)

Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue 1s measured at the far value of
consideration received or receivable

Revenue 1s principally earned from the carnage of passengers, cargo and mail, the rendering of
airport terminal and food operations, engineenng services, training of pilots, air charters and tour
wholesaling and related activities. Revenue for the Group excludes dwidends from subsidiary
compamies and intra-group transactions.

Passenger and cargo sales are recognised as operating revenue when the transportation is
provided The value of unused tickets and air waybills is tncluded n current habilities as sales 1n
advance of carnage. The value of tickets and air waybills are recognised as revenue f unused
after two years and one year respectively.

Revenue from the provision of airport terminal services 1s recognised upon rendering of services.
Revenue from manufacturing and exporting chilled and frozen processed foods is recognised upon
delivery and acceptance of goods sold.

Revenue from repair and maintenance of aircraft, engine and component overhaul 1s recognised
based on the percentage of completion of the projects. The percentage of completion of the
projects 1s determined based on the number of man-hours incurred to date against the esttmated
man-hours needed to complete the projects

Rental income from lease of awrcraft 1s recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rental income ansing on investment properties 1s accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Income from investments

Dwidend income from investments 1s recognised when the Group’s right to receve the payment 1s
established.

Interest iIncome from investments and fixed deposits is recognised using the effective interest
method.

Employee benefits
(i) Equity compensation plans

Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share options and share awards as
cansideration for services rendered.

The Group has n place, the Singapore Arrlines Limited Employee Share Option Plan and the SIA
Engineering Company Limited Employee Share Option Plan for granting of share options to semor

executives and all other employees. The exercise price approximates the market value of the
shares at the date of grant.

The Group has also implemented the Singapore Airlines Limited Restricted Share Plan and
Performance Share Plan and the SIA Engineering Company Limited Restricted Share Plan and
Performance Share Plan for awarding of fully paid ordinary shares to senior executives and key
senior management, when and after pre-determined performance or service conditions are
accomplished,
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(ac)

(ad)

Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Equity compensation plans (continued)
Detalls of the plans are disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

The cost of these equity-settied transactions with employees 15 measured by reference to the fair
value of the options or awards at the date on which the share options or awards are granted. In
valuing the share options, no account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company.

This cost is recognised in the profit and loss account as share-based compensation expense, with
a corresponding Increase in the share-based compensation reserve, over the vesting period in
which the service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees
become fully entitled to the award (“the vesting date”). Non-market vesting conditions are
included in the estimation of the number of shares under options that are expected to become
exercisable on the vesting date. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of shares under options that are expected to become exercisable on the
vesting date and recognises the impact of the revision of the estimates in the profit and loss
account, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based compensation reserve over the
remaming vesting penod.

No expense 1s recognised for options or awards that do not ultimately vest, except for options or
awards where vesting 1s conditional upon a market condition, which are treated as vested
wrespective of whether or not the market condition 1s satisfied, provided that all other
performance andfor service conditions are satisfied

The share-based compensation reserve is transferred to general reserve upon cancellation or
expiry of the vested options or awards. When the options are exerased or awards are released,
the share-based compensation reserve Is transferred to share capital f new shares are i1ssued,

(ii) Defined contribution plans

As required by law, the companies In Singapore make contrnibutions to the Central Provident Fund
scheme in Singapore, a defined contnibutton scheme. Certan of the Group’s subsidiary
companies and overseas stations outside Singapore make contnbutions to their respective
countries’ pension schemes. Such contrbutions are recogmsed as an expense In the peried 1in
which the related service s performed.

(iii} Defined benefit plans

The Group contributes to several defined benefit pension and other post-employment benefit
plans for employees stationed in certain overseas countries. The cost of providing benefits
includes the Group’s contribution for the year plus any unfunded habilities under the plans, which
15 determined separately for each plan Contributions to the plans over the expected average
remaining working lives of the employees participating 1 the plans are expensed on accrual basss.

Aircraft maintenance and overhaul costs

The Group recognises aircraft maintenance and overhaul expenses (except heavy mantenance
visits and engine overhaul expenses) on an incurred basis, For engine overhaul costs covered by
power-by-hour third-party maintenance agreements, a portion of the cost I1s expensed at a fixed
rate per hour during the terms of the agreements.
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(ae)

(af)

(ag)

(ah)

Training and development costs

Training and development costs, including start-up programme costs, are charged to the profit
and loss account in the finanoal year in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs Incurred to finance advance and progress payments for aircraft are capitalised as
part of advance and progress payments until the aircraft are commissioned for operation or the
projects are completed. All other borrowing costs are recognised as finance charges in the period
in which they are incurred.

Claims and liquidated damages

Claims for fiquidated damages, in relation to a loss of income, are recognised in the profit and loss
account when a contractual entitlement exists, the amount can be reliably measured and receipt
15 virtually certain. When the clams do not relate to a compensation for loss of income, the
amounts are taken to the statement of financial posiion as deferred credit, included under
deferred account, as a reduction to the cost of the assets when the assets are capitahsed and also
for future reduction of operating lease expenses

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses denvative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts, foreign
currency option contracts, cross currency swap contracts, interest rate swap contracts, interest
rate cap contracts, jet fuel option contracts, jet fuel swap contracts, gasoil swap contracts and
regrade swap contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign currency, interest rate and jet
fuel price fluctuations. Such denvative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair vaiue
on the date on which a derivative contract i1s entered into, and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value.

Any gains or losses ansing from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not qualfy for hedge
accounting are taken directly to the profit and loss account

The Group also set aside USD deposits to match forecast capital expenditure requirements. To
create a USD denominated asset in the statement of financial position to match against the
expected USD hability for capital expenditure, the Group accumulates USD over a peniod of 10
months in advance of forecast aircraft payments. The exchange gains and losses of the USD held
would be recognised in the carrying value of the aircraft.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the nsk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation Includes identification of
the hedged item or transaction, the hedging instrument, the nature of the risk being hedged and
how the Group will assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to
changes In the hedged item’s (or transaction’s) cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such
hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in cash flows, and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they have been highly effective throughout the
financial reporting periods for which they are designated
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{ah) Derivative financial instruments and hedging {continued)

(ai)

Dervatives are classified as fair value through profit and loss unless they qualfy for hedge
accounting. Hedges which meet the critena for hedge accounting are accounted for as cash fiow
hedges.

For cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument s
recognised directly in the fair value reserve [Note 15(d)], whie the neffective portion Is
recognised in the profit and loss account.

Amounts taken to the fair value reserve are transferred to the profit and loss account when the
hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when a forecast sale or purchase occurs. If the
hedged item 1s a non-financial asset or liability, the amounts taken to the far value reserve are
transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or hability.

Segment reporting
{i) Business segment

For management purposes, the Group Is orgamised into operating segments based on the nature
of the services provided which are independently managed by the respective segment managers
responsible for the performance of the respective segments under their charge. The segment
managers report directly to the management of the Company who regularly review the segment
results in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess the segment performance.
Additional disclosures on each of these segments are shown in Note 4, including the factors used
to dentify the reportable segments and the measurement basis of segment information The
significant business segments of the Group are airline operations, arport terminal and food
operations, engineering services and cargo operations.

(ii) Geographical segment

The analysis of revenue by area of original sale from ailine operations i1s denved by allocating
revenue to the area in which the sale was made. Revenue from other operations, which consists
principally of airport terminal and food operations, engineering services and cargo operations, Is
derived in East Asia and therefore, 1s not shown.

Assets, which consist pnncipally of fight and ground equipment, support the entire worldwide
transportation system, are mainly located in Singapore. An analysis of assets and caprtal
expenditure of the Group by geographical distnbutton has therefore not been inciuded.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future are made in the preparation of the financial statements,
They affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
ncome and expenses, and disclosures made They are assessed on an ongoing basis and are based on
experience and relevant factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertamnty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant nisk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
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(i) Impairment of property, plant and equipment — aircraft fleet

Impairment 1s recognised when events and circumstances indicate that the aircraft may be impaired and
the carrying amounts of the aircraft exceed the recoverable amounts. Recoverable amount 1s defined as
the higher of an aircraft’s fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use. In determining the recoverable
amounts of the aircraft, certain estimates regarding the current fair market value of the aircraft are made,
The current fair market value 1s determined based on desktop valuattons from an independent appraisal
for fleet with similar operational lives. When value-in-use calculations are undertaken, the Group uses
discounted cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the management covering a
specified period.

() Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — aircraft fleet

Aircraft are depreciated on a straight-hine basis at rates which are calculated to write-down their cost to
their estimated residual values at the end of ther operational lives, Certain estimates regarding the
operational lives and residual values of the fleet are made by the Group based on past experience and
these are in line with the industry. The operational lives and residual values are reviewed on an annual
basis. The carrying amount of the Group’s and the Company’s aircraft fleet at 31 March 2010 was
$12,474.9 million (2009 $12,448.2 million) and $10,347.5 million (2009: $10,212.6 million) respectively.

(ili) Passenger revenue recognition

Passenger sales are recognised as operating revenue when the transportation 1s provided. The value of
unused tickets 1s included as sales in advance of carnage on the statement of financial positon and
recognised as revenue at the end of two years. This 1s estimated based on historical trends and
expenences of the Group whereby ticket uplift occurs mainly within the first two years, The carrying
amount of the Group’s and the Company’s sales in advance of carnage at 31 March 2010 was $1,338.0
mullion (2009: $1,143.6 mithon) and $1,301.9 rullion {2009: $1,111 6 million) respectvely.

(iv) Frequent flyer programme

The Company operates a frequent flyer programme called "KnsFlyer” that provides travel awards to
programme members based on accumulated mileage. A portion of passenger revenue attributable to the
award of frequent flyer benefits is deferred until they are utilised. The deferment of the revenue Is
estimated based on historical trends of breakage and redemption, which i1s then used to project the
expected utilisation of these benefits. Any remaining unutiised benefits are recognised as revenue upon
expiry. The carrying amount of the Group’s and the Company’s deferred revenue at 31 March 2010 was
$460 1 milhon {2009: $500.8 million).

Dunng the financal year, the Company rewvised the estimated breakage rate. The impact of the revision in
estimate I1s an increase of $75.4 million In revenue.

(v) Aircraft maintenance and overhaul expenditure under power-by-hour agreements

The Group has entered into several power-by-hour ("PBH") engine maintenance agreements with engine
onginal equipment manufacturers. The monthly payments are based on the number of flying hours
flown. A portion of the cost 1s expensed at a fixed rate per hour during the term of the PBH agreement
The remaining payments made are recorded as an advance payment, to the extent that it 1s to be utilised
through future maintenance activities, if any, or capitalised upon completion of an overhaul.

The proportion of the amount to be expensed off and capitalised 1s determined based on the best
estimate as If the engine mamtenance and overhaul costs are accounted for under the tme and material
basis The carrying amount of the advance payment relating to PBH agreements for the Group and the
Company at 31 March 2010 was $325 8 mullion (2009. $139.5 million) and $278.0 million (2009: $89 9
million) respectively The maintenance and repair costs covered by PBH agreements which are expensed
off during the year amounted to $37.8 million (2008-09 $77.8 milion) for the Group and $35.8 million
(2008-09: $75.7 milion) for the Company.
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Segment Information (in $ million)

For management purposes, the Group I1s organised into business urits based on the nature of the services
provided, and has five reportable operating segments as foliows:

{ The airline operations segment provides passengér air transportaticn.

(w) The airport terminal and food operations segment I1s formed by aggregating the airport services
segment and the food solutions segment. The arport services segment provides mainly airport terminal
services, such as air freight handling services, passenger services, aviation secunty services, baggage
handfing services and apron services to the Group’s arline customers, The food solutions segment
provides mainly inflight catering, food processing and distribution services.

() The engineering services segment 1s in the business of providing airframe maintenance and
overhaul services and line maintenance and technical ground handling services. It also manufactures
awrcraft cabin equiprment, refurbishes awcraft galleys, provides technical and non-technical handing
services and repair and overhaul of hydro-mechanical aircraft equipment.

(v) The cargo operations segment 1S involved in air cargo transportation and related activities.

{v) Other services provided by the Group, such as traming of plots, ar charters and tour
wholesaling, has been aggregated under the segment “Others”:

Except as indicated above, no operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable
operating segments.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance 1s evaluated
based on operating profit or loss which in certain respects, as explained in the table below, 1s measured
differently from operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

Transfer pnces between operating segments are on an arm’'s length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with third parties.
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Segment Information (in $ million) (continued)

Geographical segments

The following table presents revenue information on arrline operations by geographical areas for the
financial years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009.

By area of original sale

2009-10 2008-09
East Asia 3,7915 4,636 4
Europe 1,534 0 2,067 6
South West Paclfic 1,2916 1,793 9
Americas 620 4 7510
Waest Asia and Africa 493 6 676 2
Systemwide 7.7311 9,9251
Non-scheduled services and incidental revenue 29489 3,667.1
106800 13,592 2

Staff Costs (in $ million)
The Group
2009-10 2008-09

Salary, bonuses and other costs 2,023 1 2,356 7

CPF and other defined contnbutions 92.8 1206

Share-based compensation expense 435 68 6

2,159.4 2,545.9

As part of the Singapore Budget 2009, the Singapore Finance Minister announced the introduction of a
Jobs Credit Scheme (“Scheme”) Under this Scheme, the Group received a 12% cash grant on the first
$2,500 of each month's wages for each employee on their Central Provident Fund (“"CPF") payroll in four
receipts 1n March, June, September and December 2009. The Scheme was later extended with an
additional payment in March 2010 at stepped down rates, where the Group recetved 6% cash grant on
the first $2,500 of each month’s wages for each employee on their CPF payroll. The total grant received
was $35 2 milhion (2008-09: $9.5 mullion} and this is accounted as a reduction in the CPF contnbution.

The Group contributes to several post-employment defined benefit plans for employees at several
overseas locations. Employees may contribute in some of these plans and these contnbutions are
matched in varying amounts by the Group, Defined benefit expenses for the Group were $18.8 million for
2009-10 and $14.7 millhon for 2008-09. As these are not matenal to the total staff costs of the Group for
2009-10 and 2008-09, additional disclosures of these defined benefit plans are not shown.

Share-based compensation expense
The Company has in place the Singapore Awlines Limited Employee Share Option Plan (“ESOP™),

Restricted Share Plan ("RSP”) and Performance Share Plan (“PSP’) and the amounts recognised in the
profit and loss account for share-based compensation transactions with employees are as follows:

The Group
2009-10 2008-09
Employee share option plan 315 580
Restricted share plan 93 86
Performance share plan 27 20
43 5 68 6
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Staff Costs (in $ million) (continued)

Share-based compensation expense (continued)

Detalls of the plans are described in the following paragraphs.

Share aption plans

The ESOP which comprises the Senior Executive Share Option Scheme and the Employee Share Option
Scheme for sentor executives and all other employees respectively, were approved by shareholders on
8 March 2000 and modified at the Extraordinary General Meetings of the Company held on 14 July 2001,
26 July 2003 and 31 July 2009.

Options are granted for a term no longer than 10 years from the date of grant. The exercise price of the
options will be the average of the closing prices of the Company's ordinary shares on the SGX-ST for the
five market days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Under the Employee Share Option Scheme, options will vest two years after the date of grant,

Under the Senior Executive Share Option Scheme, options will vest:

(a) one year after the date of grant for 25% of the ordinary shares subject to the options;

{b) two years after the date of grant for an additional 25% of the ordinary shares subject to the
options;

(c) three years after the date of grant for an additional 25% of the ordinary shares subject to the
options; and

(d) four years after the date of grant for the remaining 25% of the ordinary shares subject to the
options.,

There are no cash settlement alternatives

Movement of share options duning the financial year

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise pnces of, and movements n,
the ESOP during the financal year:

2009-10 2008-09

Weighted average Weighted average

Number of opbons eXercise price Number of options exergse pnee

Balance at 1 Apnl 63,383,492 $13 88 56,670,796 $1353
Granted - - 12,836,062 $14 83
Cancelled (2,543,095) $13 21 (2,491,890) $14 28
Exerased (8,429,077 $11 68 (3631,476) $1151
Balance at 31 March 52,411,320 $9 22 63,383,492 $13 88
Exerasable at 31 March 37,888,409 $8 54 36,174,505 $12 57

The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end of the year 1s $8.13 to $16.51 (2008-09;
$9.84 to $18.22).

Following the expiry of the share option plans In March 2009, the Company ceased to grant options under
ESCP The weighted average far value of options granted during the previous financial year was $1.95.
The werghted average share price for options exercised durning the year was $13.45 (2008-09: $13 23).
The weighted average rematning contractual iife for these cptions 1s 5.75 years (2008-09: 6.21 years).
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Staff Costs (in $ million) {(continued)

Share-based compensation expense {(continued)

Share option plans (continued)

Eair values of share options granted

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted each year under the ESOP The estimate of the fair value of the services
received 15 measured based on a binormual option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used
for the July 2008 grant;

July 2008 Grant
Expected dividend yield (%) Management's forecast in line with dvidend palicy
Expected volatility (%) 2258-2824
Risk-free interest rate (%) 266-312
Expected life of options (years) 55-70
Exercise pnce ($) 1312°
Share price at date of grant ($) 14 60

* Following approval by the Company’s shareholders of the dwvidend i spece of SATS shares on 31 luly 2009, the Board
Compensation & Industnal Relabons Committee approved a reduction of $1 71 reduction in the exercise pnces of the share
options outstanding on 28 August 2009 The exerase price reflected here 15 the exercise pnce after such adjustment.

The expected Ife of the options 1s based on historical data and I1s not necessariy indicative of exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatiity reflects the assumption that the historical volatility i1s
indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarnly be the actual cutcome. No other features of
ophions were incorporated into the measurement of fair value.
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Staff Costs (in $ million) (continued)
Share-based compensation expense {continued)
Share option plans (continued)
Terms of share opttons outstanding as at 31 March 2010:
Exercsable period Exeraise price  Number outstanding Number exercisable
372001-272010 $14 44 387,862 387,862
372002-272010 $14 44 2,400,428 2,400,428
372003-272010 $14 44 425,674 425,674
372004-272010 $14 44 445,561 445,561
272002 -1.7 2011 $975 253,338 253,338
272003-172011 $975 1,042,084 1,042,084
272004 -172011 $9 75 282,141 282,141
272005-172011 $975 286,500 286,500
172003 - 30 6 2012 $10 61 419,826 419,826
172004 -306 2012 $10 61 1,580,331 1,580,331
172005 - 306 2012 $1061 451,158 451,158
17 2006 - 306 2012 $1061 472574 472,574
17 2004 - 30 6 2013 $8 13 254,838 254,838
17 2005 - 30 6 2013 $8 13 823,801 823,801
17 2006 - 30 6 2013 $8 13 302,697 302,657
172007 -3062013 $8 13 605,612 605,612
17 2005 - 30 6 2014 $8 49 387,119 387,119
17 2006 - 30 6 2014 $8 49 1,335,751 1,335,751
172007 - 30 6 2014 $8 49 729,863 729,863
172008 - 30.6 2014 $8 49 957,838 957,838
17 2006 - 30 6 2015 $9.07 654,189 654,189
172007 - 306 2015 $9 07 3,242,677 3,242,677
17 2008 - 30 6 2015 $9 07 1,188,831 1,188,831
172009 -306 2015 $9 07 1,277,466 1,277,466
372007 - 2.7 2016 $1039 850,126 850,126
372008 - 2.7 2016 $1039 5,251,561 5,251,561
3.7 2009 - 27 2016 $10139 1,165,367 1,165,367
372010 - 2.7 2016 $10 39 1,327,082 6,745
272008-172M7 $16 51 1,260,660 1,260,660
272009-172017 $16 51 7,700,632 7,700,632
27.2010 - 17 2017 $16 51 1,250,852 22,135
27.2011 - 17 2017 $16 51 1,232,406 -
172009 - 306 2018 $1312 1,347,228 1,347,228
172010 - 30 6 2018 $1312 8,143,757 75,796
172011 - 30 6 2018 $1312 1,336,563 -
172012 - 306 2018 $13 12 1,336,927 -
Total number of options outstanding 52411320 @ 37,888,409

@ The total number of options outstanding includes:

(a) 4,230,192 (2009: 5,630,522) share options not exercsed by employees who have retired or ceased to
be employed by the Company or any of the subsidiary companies by reason of (1} il health, injury or
disability or death; (#) redundancy, or () any other reason approved in wnting by the Board
Compensation & Industrial Relations Committee. The said options are exercisable up to the
expiration of the applicable exercise period or the period of five years from the date of rebrement or

cessation of employment, whichever I1s earler; and

(b) 236,745 (2009: 377,259) share options not exercised by employees who have completed their fixed
term contracts during the financial year. The said options, if unvested, shall immediately vest and be
exercisable from the date of cessation of employment to the date falling one year from the date of

cessation of employment.

Details and terms of the share options granted by SIAEC have been disclosed in Annual Report of SIA

Engineering Company Limited.
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Staff Costs (in $ million) {(continued)
Share-based compensation expense (continued)
Share-based incentive plans

The RSP and PSP are share-based incentive plans for senior executives and key senior management,
which were approved by the shareholders of the Company on 28 July 2005.

The details of the two plans are descnbed below:

RSP PSP
Plan Description Award of fully-paid ordinary shares Award of fully-paid ordinary shares
of the Company, conditional on of the Company, conditional on
position and individual performance targets set at the
performance targets set at the start of a three-year overlapping
start of a two-year performance performance period based on
period based on medium-term stretched long-term corporate

Group and Company objectives. objectives.

Performance Conditions At both Company and Group level

» EBITDAR* Margin +  Absolute Total Shareholder
Return (TSR) outperform Cost
of Equity (COE)
e Value Added per $ « Relative TSR against selected
Employment Cost arrhne peer index companies
Vesting Condition Based on meeting stated Vesting based on meeting stated
performance conditions over a performance conditions over a

two-year performance pertod, 50% three-year performance penod.
of award will vest, Balance will

vest equally over the subsequent

two years with fulfilment of service

requirements.

Payout 0% - 150% depending on the 0% - 200% depending on the
achievement of pre-set achievement of pre-set
performance targets over the performance targets over the
performance penod. performance period.

Y EBITDAR denotes Eamings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, Amortisation and Rent
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Staff Costs {in $ million) {continued)
Share-based compensation expense {continued)
Share-based incentive plans (continued)

Movement of share awards during the financial year

The detalls of the shares awarded under the share-based incentive plans are as follows:

Number of Restricted shares

Balance at

142009/ Balance at
Date of grant date of grant Adjustment” Vested Cancelled Modification® 31 32010
RSP
27 7 2006 139,749 - (74,432) (734) 7,726 72,309
182007 496,842 46,710 (282,960) {8,692) 30,199 282,099
172008 650,612 - - (5,400) 77,411 722,623
29 7 2009 586,811 - - - 70,398 657,209

1,874,014 46,710 (357,392) (14,826) 185,734 1,734,240

" Adjustment at the end of two-year performance penod upon meeting stated performance targets

* Following approval by the Company's shareholders of the divdend 7 specre of SATS shares on 31 July 2009, the Board
Compensation & Industrial Relabions Committee approved an increase in all restricted shares outstanding on 12 August 2009 under
the RSP

Number orman ar

Balance at

142009/ Balance at
_Date of grant date of grant Adjustment” Vested Cancelled Modification” 31 3 2010
PSP
27 7 2006 144,701 (35,000) (104,966) (4,735} - -
18 2007 157,952 - - - 18,947 176,899
17 2008 222,200 - - - 26,664 248,864
29 7 2009 195,000 - - - 23,400 218,400

719,853 {35,000) (104,366) (4,735) 69,011 644,163

" Adjustment at the end of three-year performance penod upon meetng stated performance targets

* Fallowing approval by the Company's shareholders of the dividend m specie of SATS shares on 31 July 2009, the Board
Compensation & Industnal Relations Committee approved an increase in all performance shares outstanding on 12 August 2009
under the PSP

Fair values of share awards granted

The fair value of services received in return for shares awarded i1s measured by reference to the farr value
of shares granted each year under the RSP and PSP. The estimate of the fair value of the services
recetved 1s measured based on a Monte Carlo simulation model, which mvolves projection of future
outcomes using statistical distnbutions of key random vanables including share price and volatility of
returns.

The following table lists the key inputs to the model used for the July 2009 and July 2008 awards:

ly 2009 Award July 2008 Award
RSP PSP RSP PSP
Expected dividend yeld (%) Management’s forecast in hne with dnadend policy
Expected volatility (%) 2732-3360 29 50 2020-2215 2108
Risk-free interest rate (%) 050-100 061 130-235 1.76
Expected term (years) 19-39% 29 2.0-40 30
Share price at date of grant ($) 13 34 13 34 14.60 14 60
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Staff Costs (in $ million) (continued)

Share-based compensation expense (continued)

Share-based incentive plans (continued)

Fair values of share awards granted (continued)

For non-market conditions, achievement factors are determined based on inputs from the Board
Compensation & Industrial Relations Committee for the purpose of accrual for the RSP until the
achievement of the targets can be accurately ascertained

Based on the Monte Carlo simulatron model, the estimated fair value at date of grant for each share
granted under the RSP ranges from $11.99 to $12.62 (2008-09: $11.21 to $12.72) and the esttimated fair
value at date of grant for each share granted under the PSP s $14 29 (2008-09: $9.62).

When estimating the fair value of the compensation cost, market-based performance conditions shall be
taken into account Therefore, for performance share grants with market-based performance conditions,
the compensatton cost shalt be charged to the profit and loss account on a basis that farrly reflects the
manner m which the benefits will accrue to the employee under the plan over the remaining service

period from date of grant to which the performance period relates, wrespective of whether this
performance condition Is satisfied.

For performance share grants with non-market conditions, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of share grants expected to vest and corresponding adjustments are made to the profit and loss account
and share-based compensation reserve.

Under the PSP, eligible key senior management are required to hold a portion of the shares released to
them under a share ownership guideline which requires them to maintain a beneficial ownership stake in
the Company, thus further aligning their interests with shareholders

The number of contingent shares granted but not released as at 31 March 2010, were 1,734,240 (2009:
1,287,203) and 644,163 (2009 524,853) for RSP and PSP respectively. Based on the achievement factor,
the actual release of the awards could range from zero to a maximum of 2,424,156 (2009: 1,516,694)
and 1,199,877 (2009: 787,280) fully-paid ordinary shares of the Company, for RSP and PSP respectively.
Details and terms of the SIAEC RSP and SIAEC PSP have been disclosed in the Annual Report of SIA
Engineenng Company Limited.

Operating Profit (ir $ million)

Operating profit for the financial year was arrived at after charging/{crediting):

The Group
2009-10 2008-09

Interest income from short-term investments (09) (09)
Dividend income from short-term investments (0.7} (08)
(Surplus)/Loss on disposal of short-term investments (36) 47
Income from operating lease of arrcraft (10) {10 5)
Amortisation of deferred gatn on sale and operating leaseback transachons 64 7) (86 1)
Bad debts wntten off 08 24
Impairment of trade debtors - 123
Surplus on disposal of non-current assets - 1)
Professional fees paid to a firm of which a director 1s a tmember as o1
Remuneration for auditors of the Company

Audit fees 16 17

Non-audit fees 09 14
Exchange loss, net 543 733
Currency hedging loss/(gain) i77 (138 6)
Fuel hedging loss recognised in "Fuel costs” . 558 0 3483
Ineffectiveness of fuel hedging contracts recognised in "Fuel costs” 03 40




Finance Charges (in $ million)

Notes payable

Loans

Finance lease commitments

Other recevables measured at amortised cost

Realised loss on Interest rate swap contracts
accounted as cash flow hedges

Fair value {gain}/loss on interest rate swap contracts
accounted as fair value through profit and loss

Commitment fees

Interest Income (in $ million)

Fixed deposits
Amortised interest income from other recewvables
Others

Other Non-operating Items {in $ million)

Recogrution of hquidated damages
Surplus on disposal of other property, plant and equipment
Amortsation of deferred gain/(loss)
on sale and finance leaseback transactions
Gam on disposal of SATS shares
Impairment of investments
Loss on disposal of non-equity investments
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The Group
2009-10 2008-09
399 43 4
08 07
109 194
76 200
95 39
(21) 22
23 01
68.9 89 7
The Group
2009-10 2008-09
193 708
230 213
72 39
495 960
The Group
2009-10 2008-09
204 390
69 18
05 (05)
64 -
- (98
- a1
342 294




Page 50 of 92

Taxation (in $ million)
Major components of income tax expense

The magor components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009 are:

The Group
2009-10 2008-09
Current taxation
Provision for the year 799 226.0
Overprovision in respect of prior years (127 6) 7
Share of joint venture companies' taxation 06 06
Share of associated companies' taxation 13 2 119
(339 237.8
Deferred taxation
Movement in temporary differences (43 0} (38 5)
Under/(over)provision in respect of prior years 829 (3
399 (47 8)
60 190 0
Adjustment to deferred tax for reduction in
Singapore statutory corporate tax rate - (138 2)
60 518
Deferred taxation related to other comprehensive income:
The Group
2009-10 2008-09
Available-for-sale financtal assets 20 10
Cash flow hedges 1106 153 4
Share of comprehensive expense of associated and Jjoint venture companses 02 67 8
1128 222.2

The Group has tax losses (of which no deferred tax asset has been recognised) of approximately $24.4
million (2009: $21 9 million) that are available for offset aganst future taxable profits of the companies.
This 1s due to the uncertainty of the recoverabibty of the deferred tax asset. The use of the tax losses 15
subject to the agreement of the tax authonties and compliance with certain provisions of the tax
legislation of the respective countries in which the companies operate.

On 22 January 2009, the Government announced a 1% pomt reduction n statutory corporate tax rate
from Year of Assessment 2010. The financial effect of the reduction in tax rate was reflected In the

previous financial year. The aggregate adjustment of the prior year's deferred tax assets and labilities
was $138.2 million for the Group.




10

11

Page 51 of 92

Taxation (in $ million) (continued)

A reconcibation between taxation expense and the product of accounting profit multiphed by the
applicable tax rate for the years ended 31 March 15 as follows:

The Group
2009-10 2008-09

Profit befare taxation 2855 1,198.6
Taxation at statutory corporate tax rate of 17 0% 485 2038
Adjustments
Income not subject to tax (48 3) {54 5)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 357 333
Higher effective tax rates of other countries 76 167
Qverprovision In respect of prior years, net (44 7) (100)
Adjustment to deferred tax for reduction in

Singapore statutory corporate tax rate - (138 2)
Tax benefit not recognised 63 04
Others 09 03
Taxation 60 518
Earnings Per Share

The Group
2009-10 2008-09
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Profit attnbutable to equity holders

of the Company (In $ million) 2158 2158 1,061 5 1,0615
Adjustment for dilutive potential ordinary shares

of subsichary compantes (in $ millton) - {10) - (11)
Adjusted net profit attnbutable to equity holders

of the Company (in $ milion) 2158 214 8 1,061 5 1,060 4
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue (in milhon) 1,184 8 1,184 8 1,184.7 1,1847
Adyustrent for dilutive potential

ordinary shares (in mullion) - 117 - 52
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

used for computing earnings per share (in million) 1,184 8 1,196 5 1,1847 1,189 9
Earmings per share (cents) 182 180 89 6 891

Basic earnings per share 15 calculated by dividing the profit attnibutable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the finangal year.

For purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company 1s adjusted to take into account effects of dilutive potential ordinary shares of subsidiary
companies and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company in ssue I1s adjusted to
take into account effects of dilutive options of the Company.

28.4 milion (2008-09: 34.0 million) of the share options granted to employees under the existing
employee share option plans have not been included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share
because they are anti-dilutive for the current and previous years presented.
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Dividends Paid and Proposed (in $ million)

The Group and the Company
2009-10 2008-09
Dividends pard.
Dwidend 7 specie 1,146 3 -
Final dwvidend of 20 0 cents per share tax exempt {one-tier) in respect of 2008-09 2369 948 7
{2008-09 80 0 cents per share tax exempt [one-tier] in respect of 2007-08)

Intenm dividend of 20 0 cents per share tax exempt {one-tier) in respect of 2008-09 - 2371

1,383 2 1,1858

The directors propose that a final tax exempt (one-tier) dividend of 12.0 cents per share {2008-09: final
tax exempt {one-tier] dividend of 20.0 cents per share) amounting to $143.0 milhlon (2008-09 $2369
mithon) be paid for the financial year ended 31 March 2010.

Share Capital (in $ million)

The Group and the Company
Number of shares Amount

Issued and fully paid share capital 2010 2009 2010 2009

Ordinary shares

Balance at 1 Apnil 1,186,547,790 1,186,334,147 11,6848 1,6820

Share options exerased dunng the year 5,060,721 213,643 65 8 28

Balance at 31 March 1,191,608,511 1,186547,790 17506 16848

Special share

Balance at 1 Apnl and 31 March 1 1 # #

# The value 1s $0 50

The holders of ordinary shares (except treasury shares} are entitted to receive dividends as and when
declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction.

The Company’s ability to operate its existing route network and flight frequency is derived solely from and
dependent entirely on the Air Service Agreements ("ASAs”) concluded between the Government of
Singapore and the governments of other countnies. ASAs are therefore cntical to the Company’s
operations In almost all the ASAs, it 1s a condition that the Company must at all tmes be “effechvely
controlled” and “substantially owned” by Singapore nationals for the tenure of the respective ASAs.

In order to comply with the above requirement, one non-tradeable Special Share was ssued to the
Ministry of Finance. The Speaal Share enjoys all the nghts attached to ordinary shares. In addition,
pursuant to Artcle 3A of the Articles of Association, no resolution may be passed on certain matters
without prior written approval of the Special Member

The Company can also issue non-tradeable redeemable cumulative preference shares, which carry full
voting nights ("ASA shares”) When issued, the ASA shares will be paid at $0.01 each and will carry equal
voting nights as those of ordinary shares. These shares will be 1ssued only when the directors determine
that the Company’s operating nghts under any of the ASAs are threatened by reason of the nationality of
the majonty shareholders.

During the financial year, the Company issued 5,060,721 shares (2008-09. 213,643) upon exercise of
options granted under the Employee Share Option Plan.
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Treasury Shares (in $ million)

The Group and the Company

31 March
2010 2009

Balance at 1 Apnl (44.4) (33 2)

Purchase of treasury shares - (64.1)
Treasury shares reissued pursuant to

equity compensation plans

- For cash on exercise of employee share options 360 392

- Transferred from share-based compensation reserve 137 100

- {Gain)/Loss on reissuance of treasury shares 62} 37

435 529

Balance at 31 March (09) (44 4)

Treasury shares relate to ordinary shares of the Company that are held by the Company.

Dunng the financial year, no shares were purchased for the purposes of fulfilling the Company’s
obligations under the equity compensation plans.

In the previous financial year, the Company purchased 5,177,000 of its ordinary shares by way of on-
market purchases at share prices ranging from $9.48 to $16.07, The total amount paid to purchase the
shares was $64.1 mullion and this 1s presented as a component within equity attnbutable to equity holders
of the Company

The Company reissued 3,368,356 (2009: 3,417,833) treasury shares pursuant to its employee share
option plans at a weighted average exercise price of $10.67 (2009: $11 49) each. In addition, 104,966
(2009: mil) shares and 357,392 (2009: 152,969) shares were reissued pursuant to the PSP and RSP
respectively. The number of treasury shares as at 31 March 2010 was 76,484 (2009: 3,907,198).

Where the consideration paid by the Company for the purchase or acquisition of treasury shares 1s made
out of revenue reserves, such consideration will correspondingly reduce the amount avallable for the
distnbution of cash dividends by the Company.

Other Reserves {in $ million)

(a) Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly anses from the revaluation of land and bulldings owned by RCMS Properties Private
Limited, an associated company and the gains or losses on the reissuance of treasury shares.

{b) Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arnsing from the transiation of
the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from that of the
Group’s presentation currency.

(<) Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve represents the equity-settled share options and awards granted to

employees. The reserve 1s made up of the cumulative value of services received from employees
recorded on grant of equity-settled share options and awards
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Other Reserves (in $ million) (continued)

(d)

Fair value reserve

Page 54 of 92

Fair value reserve records the cumulative fair value changes of avallable-for-sale financial assets and the
portion of the fair value changes (net of tax) on denivative financial instruments designated as hedging
instruments in cash flow hedges that 1s determined to be an effective hedge

Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets.

3 The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Balance at 1 April (5. 0) 09 (19 (0 4
Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes 100 (5 9) 19 (15}
Balance at 31 March 50 _50) - (19
|Gain/(Loss) on fair value changes 108 (47 - {19)
Recognised in the profit and loss account
on disposal of available-for-sale nvestiments (0.8 (12 19 04
100 (59 19 (15)

Fair_value changes of denvative financial instruments_designated as hedgin

hedges:

Balance at 1 Apnil
Net gain/{loss) on fair value changes
Balance at 31 March

Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes
Share of associated companies’ net loss
on faw value reserve
Recognised in the carrying value of non-financial assets on
occurrence of capital expenditure commitments
Recognised in the profit and loss account on occurrence of
Fue! hedging contracts recognised n "Fuel costs”
Foreign currency contracts recognised in
"Other operating expenses”
Interest rate swap contracts recognised in
"Finance charges”

Total fair value reserve

Deferred Account (in $ million)

Deferred gain on sale and leaseback transactions
- operating leases
- finance leases

Deferred credit

instruments 1n cash flow

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
(655 8) 4425 (494 1) 1990
5099 (1,0983) 408 8 {693 1)
{145 9) (655 8) {85 3) (494.1)
483  (1,0091) 359 (904 3)
an (2427) - -
63 206 63 206
463.1 2891 3818 251.5
(140) (694) (152) (60 9)
79 32 - -
5099 (1.0983) 408 8 (693 1)
(140 9 (660 8) (853} (496 0)
The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
82.0 164 3 62 6 1135
17 4 40 8 - -
99 4 2051 626 1135
381 3 468 8 3813 468 8
4807 6739 443 9 5823
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Deferred Taxation (in $ million)
The Group _ The Company
Statement of financal Statement of financial
position Profit and loss position
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2009-10 2008-09 2010 2009
The deferred taxation anses as a result of
Deferred tax habilites
Differences in deprectation 23157 24125 (546) (1385) 1,9417 1,996 4
Revaluatbion of fuel hedging contracts
to far value 12 06 - - 12 04
Revaluation of currency hedging
contracts to farr value 31 289 03 - 24 241
Revaluation of interest rate cap
contracts to farr value 07 - - - 07 -
Revaluation of avallable-for-sale
financial assets to fair value 10 - - - - -
Identified intangible assets - 565 - 07 - -
Other temporary differences 795 771 31 {5 5} 74 4 711
Gross deferred tax habilities 24012 2,5756 (512) (144 7) 2,020 4 2,0920
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed capital allowances
and tax losses (17 1) (311 {(54) (22 4) - -
Revaluation of fuel hedging contracts
to fair value (193) (1530) - - (161) (1257)
Revaluation of currency hedging
contracts to farr value 29 (28) - - (25) (20)
Revaluation of interest rate swap
contracts to far value (2 2) (24) 20 - (2 2) -
Revaluation of interest rate cap
contracts to far value - (13) - - - (13)
Revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets to fair value - (10} - - - (04
Other deferred tax assets (631) (1620) 945 (189) (54 0) (146 7)
Gross deferred tax assets (104 6) (3536) 911 (41 3) (74 8) (276 1)
Net deferred tax habilities 22966 22220 1,9456 1,8159
Deferred tax charged/{credited) to profit and loss 399 (1860}
Deferred tax charged/{credited) to equity 347 (134 1) 88 4 185 2
Long-Term Liabilities and Provisions (in $ million)
The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2008 2010 2009
Notes payable 9000 1,100 0 9000 900 0
Current - (200 0) - -
Non-current 900 0 900 0 900 0 9000
Loans - 4490 - -
Current - (327 - -
Non-current - 11.3 - -
Finance lease commitments 4389 548 5 - -
Current {64 5) (66 9) - .
Non-current 3744 481.6 - -
Provisions 199 2 1559 1426 114.8
Current (35 5) {353) {9 5} (26 7
Non-current 163 7 1206 1331 881
Total long-term liabilites and provisions 14381 15135 1,033 1 988 1
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Long-Term Liabilities and Pravisions (in $ million) (continued)
Notes payable

Notes payable at 31 March 2010 compnise unsecured long-term notes issued by the Company, which bear
fixed interest at 4.15% (2008-09* 4.15%) per annum and are repayable on 19 December 2011. Notes
payable at 31 March 2009 included unsecured medwm-term notes 1ssued by SATS, which bore fixed
tnterest at 3 00% per annum. The fair value of notes payable amounted to $936.4 million for the Group
(2009- $1,109 3 rmilion) and the Company (2009: $909.0 mithon)

Loans

Duning the financial year, the Group repaid an unsecured loan of $0 8 million which was a revolving credit
facility denominated 1n USD taken by a substdiary company bearing interest of 1,.20% per annum over the
bank prevailing Singapore Interbank Offered Rate The Group also repaid unsecured revolving bank loans
where interest was charged based on monthly floating rates and the effective interest rates ranged from
1 95% to 3.85% per annum.

Apart from the above loans, the remaining loans as at 31 March 2009 were related to SATS Group that
was disposed during the financial year (Note 22).

$17.8 million of the remaiming loans were secured over property, plant and equipment and other assets of
certain subsidiary companies with a total carrying value of $141.2 milion at 31 March 2009 Interest on
these loans ranged from 1.50% to 10.20% per annum

There were also two unsecured term loans amounting to $3.4 mulion, which commenced on 10 April 2003
and 26 February 2008, and were repayable in 240 and 60 instalments respectively. Interest on the
unsecured term loans were charged at the bank’s prevaling prime rate on monthly rest. The effective
interest rates ranged from 4.20% to 4.50% per annum.

The Group
31 March
2010 2009
Not later than one year - 27
Later than one year but not later than five years - 92
Later than five years - 21

- 440

Finance leases commitments

Singapore Arrlines Cargo Pte Ltd ("SIA Cargo™) holds four B747-400 freighters under finance leases, which
will mature between 2014 and 2018, without any options for renewal. Three leases have options for SIA
Cargo to purchase the aircraft at the end of the lease penod of 12 years. The fourth lease has an option
for SIA Cargo to purchase the arrcraft at the end of the 12™ or 15" year of the lease period. Sub-leasing
Is allowed under the lease agreements.

The finanang obligations for the first five years of three leases are secured by an aircraft pledged as
collateral, until 2011 Replacement of the awrcraft pledged as collateral by another aircraft 1s permitted
under the mortgage agreement.

Interest rates on three of SIA Cargo’s finance lease commitments are charged at a margin above the
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR"). These ranged from 0.29% to 2.46% (2008-09: 2 20% to
3.78%) per annum. The interest rate on the remaimng SIA Cargo’s finance lease comrmitment 15 fixed at
5 81% (2008-09: 5.81%) per annurn,
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Long-Term Liabilities and Provisions (in $ million) {(continued)
Finance leases commitments (continued)

SIA Cargo continues to remain the primary obligor under the lease agreements and as such, there are
unpaid lease commitments of $87.8 million (2009: $95 4 millsion) as at 31 March 2010 Qut of this, $59.1
rmifion (2009: $60.8 million) are covered by funds placed with financial mstitutions under defeasance to
provide for payments due at time of exercise of purchase option at the end of the 12 year or 15" year of
the lease peniod. The funds placed with financial institutions are expected to generate interest in order to
meet the obligation at time of maturity These arrangements have not been included in the financial
statements.

The SIAEC Group has finance leases for certain equipment and vehicles which will mature between 2010
and 2011,

Included in the previous financiat year were finance lease agreements entered into by SATS Group for the
lease of tractors for a period of 10 years from March 2008. The principal I1s payable by instalments over a
period of 120 months, at an interest rate of 5.10% per annum In addition, the SATS Group had finance
leases for certain iterms of plant, machinery and equipment. These lease agreements did not have
renewal clauses but provide the SATS Group with options to purchase the leased assets at nominal values
at the end of the lease term

Future lease payments under these finance leases are as follows

The Group
31 March
2010 2009
Minimum Repayment Minimum Repayment
Payments of Pnncipal Payments of Principal

Not later than one year 782 645 852 669
Later than one year but not later than five years 3105 2753 3594 3082
Later than five years 106.3 991 188 5 1734
Total future lease payments 495 0 4389 6331 5485
Amounts representing interest ~ (56.1) - (84 6) -
Principal value of finance lease commitments 438 9 4389 548 5 5485
Provisions

Included are prowvisions made for upgrade costs and return costs for aircraft under sales and leaseback
arrangement. It i1s expected that the return costs will be incurred by the end of the lease terms.

An analysis of the provisions I1s as follows:

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Balance at 1 Aprit 1559 134 3 1148 1102
Provision dunng the year 800 73.9 612 569
Provision utiltised during the year (35 8) (53 5) (32.5) (53 5)
Exchange (gain)/loss (09) 12 (0 9) 12
Balance at 31 March 199 2 1559 142 6 114 8
Current 355 353 95 267
Non-current 163 7 120 6 1331 B81
199 2 155 % 142 6 114 8
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19 Property, Plant and Equipment (in $ million) (continued)

The Group
31 March
2010 2009
Net bock value of property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases
- arrcraft 7391 7979
- plant and equipment 01 56 4
7392 854 3

Advance and progress payments comprise mainly purchases of aircraft and related equipment

Property, plant and equipment pledged as security

The Group
31 March
2010 2009
Net book value of
- plant and equipment - 216
- freehold land - 14
- freehold builldings - 128
- leasehold buiidings - 102

- 46 0

The property, plant and equipment mortgaged under bank loans were related to a subsidiary company
that was disposed during the financial year {Note 22).
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Page 62 of 92
Intangible Assets (in $ million) (continued)

The Group {continued)

Goodwill ansing on_consolidation

In 2002-03, SATS acquired 66 7% equity interest in Country Foods Pte Ltd at a cost of $6.0 million.
Goodwill on acquisition of $1 5 muillion was capitalised and amortised in financial years 2003-04 ($0.1
mullion) and 2004-05 ($0.1 mitlon)

During the previous financial year, SATS acquired 100.0% equity interest in Singapore Food Industries
Limited (“SFI"), Goodwill of $239.3 million arose from the acquisition and was attributable to the farr
value of improved resilience to sector specific volatilites and significant synergies expected to arise after
the acquisition.

Brands, customer relationships and licences

In 2007-08, SIAEC acquired 100.0% equity wterest in Arcraft Mantenance Service Austrabia Pty Lid
tpon acquisition, licences to operate in Australia were capitalised.

Upon acquisition of SFI, intangible assets relating to brands, customer relabionships and hcences were
capitalised

Brands relate to the “New Covent Garden”, “Johnsons” and “Farmhouse Fare” brand names for SATS
Group’s food preparation, manufacturing and processing operations, The useful Iife of the first two
brands was estimated to be indefinite while “*Farmhouse Fare” brand name had estimated useful life of 17
years

The customer relationships relate to the economic benefits that were expected to derive from trading with
the existing customers in the Singapore and United Kingdom ("UK") operations. The relationships
included catenng and supply contracts with customers as well as other non-contractual customer
relationships which past transactions provided ewidences that SATS Group was able to benefit from the
future economic inflows from such relationships,

Licences refer to the abattoir and hog auction licence granted by the Agn-Food and Veterinary Authority
of Singapore and transferable fishing licence in Australia,

The Company
Computer software
31 March
2010 2009
Cost
At 1 Aprl 3082 293.0
Additions 159 152
Dsposal {31 1) -
At 31 March 293 0 3082
Accumubated amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2433 2140
Amortisation 257 293
Disposal {31 0) -
At 31 March 238 0 243 3
Net book value 550 64 9
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Investment Properties (in $ million)

The Group
31 March
2010 2009
Balance af 1 Apnl 70 -
Transfer from property, plant and equipment - 73
Dispasal of a subsidiary company (6 8) -
Depreciation (0 2) {0 3)
Balance at 31 March - 70
Cost - 163
Accumulated depreciation - (93)
Net book value - 70

The property rental income earned by the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 from s investment
properties which are leased out under operating leases, amounted to $2.5 million (2008-09: $2.1 million),

Direct operating expenses (including repaws and mamntenance) ansing on rental-earning mvestment
properties amounted to $0 8 nulfion (2008-09. $0 7 million).

The investment properties were related to SATS Group that was disposed during the financial year (Note
22). The Group estmated the fair value of the investment properties as at 31 March 2009 to approximate
the net book value,

Subsidiary Companies (in $ million)

The Company
31 March
2010 2009
Investment in subsidiary companies (at cost)

Quoted equity investments i ##
Unguoted equity investments 1,772 4 1,772 4
1,772 4 1,772.4
Accumulated impairment loss {16 6) (16 6)
1,755 8 1,755 8
Loan to a subsidiary company 500 250
1,805 8 1,780 8
Funds from subsichary companies (1,166 7) {1,426 6)
Amounts owing to subsidiary companies (131 3) {171 2)
{1,298 0) {1,597.8)
Amounts owing by subsidiary companies 141.0 284 6
Market value of quoted equity nvestments 3,0885 2,679 6

# The value I1s $1
** The value 15 $2

During the financial year.

1. SIAEC injected an additional $1.9 million in SIA Engineering Philippines ("SIAE(PH)"). There was
no change in SIAEC's 65 0% equity stake in SIAE(PH)

2. SIAEC incorporated two special-purpose, wholly-owned subsichary companies, NexGen Network
(1) Holding Pte Ltd ("NGN1") and NexGen Network (2) Holding Pte Ltd ("NGN2"), to hold investment in
the C-senies and MRJ aircraft engine programmes. SIAEC imected an inihal investment of $3.8 mullion and
$8.4 milion in NGN1 and NGN2 respectively.
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Subsidiary Companies (in $ million) (continued)

There are two unsecured loans to a subsidiary company, due for repayment in 20i1 and 2014
respectively. Interests on these loans are computed using SGD Swap-Offer Rates plus an agreed margin.
The loans are denominated in SGD and interest rates ranged from 1 84% to 4.01% (2008-09: 2.75% to
2 95%) per annum. Net carrying amount of the loans approximate the far value as interest rates implicit
in the loans approximate market interest rate.

Funds from subsidiary companies are unsecured and have varying repayment terms. Interest on funds
from subsidiary companies are computed using prevailing market rates which range from 0 03% to 1.00%
{2008-09: 0.03% to 1.75%) per annum for SGD funds, from 0.09% to 1.85% (2008-09 0.03% to
6 30%) per annum for USD funds and from 2.80% to 4 03% (2008-09: 3.05% to 7 45%) per annum for
AUD funds.

As at 31 March 2010, the composttion of funds from subsidiary companies held in foreign currencies by
the Company 15 as follows: USD — 21.0% (2009* 9.4%) and AUD - 0.7% (2009: 0.4%)

Amounts owing to/by subsidiary companies are unsecured, trade-related, non-interest bearing and are
repayable on demand. The amounts owing by subsidiary companies are neither overdue nor impaired.

Disposal of a subsidiary company

Pursuant to the dividend 1 specie distnbution on 1 September 2009, the Company had disposed of its
entire shareholdings in SATS.

The Group's share of net assets of SATS as at 1 September 2009 were:

Property, plant and equipment 5974
Investment properties 68
Intangible assets 4895
Associated companies 3315
Joint venture companies 01
Other non-current assets 199
Trade and other debtors 2973
Cash and cash egurvalents 3019
2,044.4

Minonty interests 2902
Other non-current habilities 1313
Trade and other creditors 476 6
8981

Net identifiable assets 1,146.3
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Subsidiary Companies (in $ million) {continued)

The subsidiary companies at 31 March are:

Page 65 of 92

Percentage of

Country of  equity held by the
incarporation and Group
Principal activities place of business 2010 2009
SIA Engineenng Company Limited Engineenng services Singapore 805 807
Aircraft Maintenance Services Australia  Prowiding aircraft maintenance Austraha 805 807
Pty Ltd™* services, Including technical and
non-technical handling at the
atrport
NexGen Network (1) Holding Pte Lid®  Investment holding Singapore 805 -
NexGen Network (2) Holding Pte Ltd® Investment holding -do - 805 -
SIA Engineering (USA), Inc @€ Providing aircraft maintenance United States 805 807
services, Including technical and non- of Amenca
technical handling at the airport
SIAEC Global Pte Ltd Investment holding Singapore 805 807
SIA Engineenng {Philippines) Providing arframe maintenance and Philippines 523 525
Corporation* component overhaul services
Singapore Jamco Pte Lid Manufacturing awrcraft cabin Singapore 523 525
equipment and refurbishment of
aircraft galleys
Aerospace Component Engineenng Repair and overhaul of hydro- -do - 411 412
Services Pte Ltd mecharical equipment for Boeing
and Arrbus arcraft
Aviation Partnerstup (Philippines) Providing aircraft maintenance Philppines 411 412
Corporation* services, inciuding techmceal and
non-technical handling at the
arport
Singapore Airlines Cargo Pte Ltd Aur cargo transportation Singapore 1000 1000
Carge Community Network Pte Ltd Providing and marketing of Cargo -do - 510 510
Community Systems
Cargo Community (Shanghar) Co Marketing and support of portal Peaple’s Republic 510 510
Ltd** services for the air cargo industry of China
Silkar (Singapore) Prvate Limited Arr transportatron Singapore 100 0 100 0
Tradewands Tours & Travel Pnvate Tour wholesaling -do- 1000 100 0
Limited
Singapare Awiation and General Aviabon msurance -do- 1000 100 0
Insurance Company (Pte) Limited
SIA Properties (Pte) Ltd Inactive -do- 100 ¢ 100 0
Singapore Flying College Pte Ltd Training of pilots -do - 1000 1000
Sing-Bt Funds Private Limited Inactive -do - 1000 1000
Singapore Asrport Duty-Free Emponum  Inachve -do - 760 953
{Pnivate) Linnted
Abacus Travel Systems Pte Ltd Marketing of Abacus Computer -do- 610 610
reservations systems
SIA (Maunbus) Ltd9@ Puat recruitment Maunbus 1000 1000
The following companies are part of SATS Group which was disposed dunng the financial year:
Singapare Airport Terminal Services Investment holding Singapore - B06
Linited
Aero Laundry & Linen Services Pnivate  Prowiding and selling laundry and -do - - B06
Limited linen services
Asia-Paaific Star Pte Ltd Dormant ~do - - 806
Country Foods Pte Ltd Manufactunng of chilled, frozen and -do- - 806
processed foods
Country Foods Macau Limited* Processing and packaging of food and Macau - 411
beverage products
SATS Awport Services Pte Ltd Arrport ground handhing services Singapere - 806
SATS Catening Pte Ltd Inflight catenng semvices -do - - 806
SATS Hong Kong Limited* Aircraft ramp handling and passenger Hong Kong - 806
services
SATS Secunty Services Pte Ltd Awviation secunty services Singapore - 806
Singapore Food Industnes Limited* Food distnbubon and processing of -do- - 806
food
International Cuisine Limited and its Production and marketing of chilled Umted Kingdom - 806
subsidiary companies** ready cooked food
Cresset Limiteg®* Manufacture of food preducts and Republic of Irefand - 806
chilled ready cooked food
Swissco Limited®* In hquidation -do - - 806
Swissco Manufactunng Limited*# Purchase of goods and services ~do - - 806
Myanmar ST Food Industries Ltg** Dormant ' Myanmar - BO6
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Subsidiary Companies (in $ million) (continued)

Principal actvities

Country of
incorporabton and
place of business

Page 66 of 92

Percentage of
equity held by the
Group
2010 2009

Pnmary Industnes (Qid) Pty Ltd and its

subsidiary companies®®
Urangan Fishenes Pty Ltd**
S Daniels plc and its subsidiary
companies**
All Square Foods Limited®#
Bdash Foods Limited**
Brash Brothers Limited*#
Darnels Chilled Foods Limited**

Daniels Foods Limited**

Daniels Group Limited**

Farmhouse Fare Limited*?

Get Fresh mited**

Johnsons Fresh Products Limited*®*

Johnsons Freshly Squeezed Juice
Limited®®

Juice Lirited®*®

New Covent Garden Food Company
Limited**

Sun-npe Limited**

The New Covent Garden Soup
Company Limited**

SFI Food Pte Ltd*

SFI Manufactunng Pte Ltd*

Singapore Food Development Pte
Ltd*

Singfood Pte Ltd*

Shanghal ST Food Industnies Co,
Ltd**

Pnmary Industnes Pte Ltd and #ts
subsidiary companies*

Farmers Abattoir Pte Ltd®

Hog Aucton Market Pte Ltd*

Aerclog Express Pte Ltd

All the Singapore-incorporated subsidlary companies are audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore
x

Providing of land logistics support

Processing of seafood
Investment holding

Inactive

Inactve

Inactve

Producbon and marketing of chilled
soup, freshly squeezed juices, fresh
salads and sandwich fillings

Inactive

Inactive

Manufacture and sale of pudding

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive

Inactive
Inactve

Inactive
Inactive

Providing techrical and management
services for agn-food business

Supply of food product

Investment holding

Contract manufacturning of food
products

Manufacture and sale of frozen
foodstuff

Providing abattoir services

Abattoir related activibes

Auctioneers of pigs

Airport cargo delivery management
services

Audited by member firms of Emst & Young

** Audited by Grant Thormnton

¥ Audited by KPMG LLP, Singapore

o Audited by member firms of KPMG

® Company newly incorporated and not audited during the financlal year
%0 Not required to be audited in country of Incorporation

Australia

- do -
United Kingdom

-do-
-do-
-do-
-do-

-do-
-do-
-do-
-do -
_do_
-do-

-do-
~-do-

-do -
-do -

Singapore

-do -
-do -

-do-

People's Republhic
of China
Singapore

-do -
-do -
-do -

- 806

- 411
- 806

- 806
- 806
- 8G6
- 806

- 806
- 806
- 806
- 806
- 806
- 806

- 806
- 806

- 806
- 806

- 806

- 806
- 806

- 806
- 77 4
- 633
- 633

- 633
. 56 4




23 Associated Companies (in $ million)
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The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Share of net assets of associated companies
at acquisiion date 427 2 3240 - -
Goodwill on acquisition of associated companies 1677 2 1,759.6 - -
Unquoted investments at cost 2,104 4 2,083.6 1,725 1 1,5921
Accumulated impairment loss {15 2) {(185) (9 4) (9.4)
2,089 2 2,065.1 1,7157 1,582.7
Goodwill wntten-off to reserves (1,612 3) {(1,613.0) - -
Accumulated amortisation of intangible assets - (43.2) - -
Foreign currency translation reserve (136 3) (122.7) - -
Share of post-acquisition reserves
- general reserve 469 2686 - -
- fair value reserve 728 72.0 - -
- capital reserve 723 200 - -
532 6 716 8 1,7157 15827
Loans to assoctated companies 45 143.0 - 1371
write-down of loans (45) {4.5) - -
- 138.5 - 1371
5326 855.3 1,715 7 1,7198
Amounts owing by associated compames - 04 - -
Amounts owing to associated companies {2 0) (06 - -
Amounts owing to assooiated companies, net {2 0) (0.2) - -
Durtng the financial year:
1, RCMS Properties Private Limited recorded a revaluation loss of $88.6 milhon (2008-09: $29.4

rmillion) from its annual revaluation exercise of its land and building. The Group’s share of the revaluation
loss of $17.7 mithon at 31 March 2010 (2009: $5.9 mullion) is induded under the share of post-acquisition
capital reserve.

2. SIAEC acquired a 49.0% stake in SAFRAN Electronics Asia Pte Ltd.

3. Tiger Airways Holdings bimited ("TIG") was listed on the SGX-ST i January 2010 and pursuant to
the listing, the Group’s shareholdings in TIG decreased from 49 0% to 340% As a result, the Group
recognised a surplus on dilution of interest of $80.5 milion in the general reserves. Subsequent to the
public histing, the Group’s shareholdings in TIG was further reduced to 33.7% due to share options
exercised.

4, The Group has not recognised net liabtlities relating to an associated company where its share of
net habilities exceeds the Group’s interest in this associated company. The Group’s cumulattve share of
net habilities at the end of the reporting pertod was $73.8 million (2009: $185.6 million)., The Group has
no obligation in respect of these unrecognised lrabilities.

The customer-related intangible assets arose from SATS' acquisition of assoctated companies. SATS had
engaged an independent third party to perform a fair vatuation of these separately 1dentfied intangible
assets. The useful Iife of these intangible assets was determined to be five years and the assets will be
amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful Iife. The amortisation 15 included in the line of share of
profits of associated companies in the consolidated profit and loss account, Subsequent to the disposal of
SATS, there are nil balances for the intangible assets and related accumulated amortisation.

Loans to associated companies are unsecured and have no foreseeable terms of repayments.
Accordingly, the farr values of the loans are not determinable as the timing of future cash flows ansing
from the loans cannot be estimated reliabiy.

Loans to associated companies of $4 5 million were repaid during the financal year
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23 Associated Companies (in $ million) (continued)

An amount of $133 0 milion, which was previously recorded as a loan, has been reclassified as cost of
nvestment. This amount represents cumulative redeemable preference shares 1ssued by Virgin Atlantic
Limited ("VAL"). On 20 October 2009, the terms and conditions of the cumulative preference shares were
changed to remove the automatic nght of the preference shareholders to receive cumulative dividends
and VAL had accordingly reclassified the hability in their bocks to share capital.

The cumulative redeemable preference shares carry no entittement to vote at meetings. On a winding up
of VAL, the preference shareholders have a right to receive, in preference to payments to ordinary
shareholders, the amount pa:d up on any share including any amount paid up by way of share premium
plus any arrears or accruals of dividend declared but not paid on the due date.

Amounts owing to/by associated companies are unsecured, trade-related, non-interest bearing and are
repayabie on demand.

The summansed financial information of the associated compantes, not adjusted for the proportion of
ownership interest held by the Group, are as follows:

The Group
31 March
2010 2009
Assets and labilibes
Current assets 2,969 5 3.8337
Non-current assets 19691 26613
4938 6 6,495 0
Cutrent habilibes (2,308 2) (3,976 4)
Non-current liabiibes (1,127 3) {1,197 1)

(3,435 5) {5,173 5)

Results 2009-10 2008-09
Revenue 6,364 2 7,702 1
Loss for the period (25 8) (28 2)




Associated Companies (in $ million) (continued)

The assocated companies at 31 March are:

Page 69 of 92

Country of  Percentage of
incorporation  equity held by
and place of the Group
Pnncipal actwibes business 2010 2009
Service Quality (5Q) Centre Pte Ltd® Quality service training Singapore 500 500
Virgin Atantc Umited** Air transportation United Kingdom 450 490
Tiger Arways Holdings Lirnited® Investment holding Singapore 337 490
RCMS Properties Private Limited™* Hotel ownership and management -do- 200 200
Combustor Aimmeotive Services Pte Ltd™*** Repair and overhaul of aircraft engine - do - 395 395
combustion chambers, guides, fuel
nozzies and related parts
Eagle Services Asia Private Limited™* Repair and overhaul of aircraft engines -do- 395 385
Fuel Accessory Service Technologies Pte Repair and overhaut of engine fuel -do- 395 395
Ltd™ components and accessories
PT JAS Aero-Engineering Services**+ Providing aircraft maintenance services, Indonesia 395 335
incduding technical and non-technical
handling at the airport
PWA Intemational Limited”™*** Reparr, overhaul and re-manufacture of Republicof 395 395
arrcraft turbine engine cases, Ireland
components and related parts
Safran Electronics Asta Pte Ltd®oo+— Providing avionics mantenance, repair Singapore 395 -
and overhaul services
Pan Asia Paafic Aviatton Services Ltdeeee Providing arrcraft maintenance services, Hong Kong 379 380
induding technical and non-technical
handling at the arport
Jamco Aero Design & Engineenng Private Providing turnkey solubions for aircraft Singapore 362 363
Limited” intenor modifications
Messier Services Asia Private Lmited®*** Repair and overhau! of Boeing and Airbus -do- 322 323
senes landing gears
Goodrich Aerostructures Services Asia Pte Repair and overhaul of arcraft nacelles, -do- 322 323
Ltg @+ thrust reversers and pylons
Asian Surface Technologies Pte Ltd®®e*+ Repair and overhaul of aircraft engine fan -do - 3t6 316
blades
International Aerospace Tubes-Asia Pte Repatr of tubes, ducts and mamnifolds for -do- 268 269
Ltd™** arcraft engines and airframe application
Asian Compressor Technology Services Co Repair and overhaul of arrcraft engines Tawan 197 198
L™+ high pressure compressor stators
Turbine Coating Services Private Ltd™*** Repair and overhaul of aircraft engine Singapore 197 198
turbine airfolis
PT Purosani Si Persada Hotel awnership and management Indonesia 200 00
Great Wall Airlines Company bimited** Alr cargo transportation People’s Republic 250 250
of China

The following companies are part of SATS Group which was disposed during the financial year:

PT Jasa Angkasa Semesta Tbk**+*
Asia Arrfreight Terminal Co Ltd*
Awiserv Ltg*+

Servair-SATS Holding Company Pte Ltd***+*

Ta) SATS Air Catenng Limited®
Bemng Awport Inflight Xitchen Ltd***

Beying Aviation Ground Services Co , Lid***
Maldives Inflight Catering Private Limited®®

Ta) Madras Fight Kitchen Pvt Lmited®”
Tan Son Nhat Cargo Services Lig?**

Evergreen Arr Cargo Services Corporation™”**

Evergreen Ailine Services Corporation®**
MacroAsia Catenng Services, Inc ****

Audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore
Audited by member firms of Ernst & Young

o

o0

co0 Audited by RSM Chio Lim, Singapore
o200 Audited by BDO Limited, Hong Kong

Ground and cargo handling services
Air cargo handling services

Infight catening services
Investment holding company
Catering services

Infight catering services

Airport ground handling services
Infight catering services

Infight catenng services

Air cargo handiing services

Arr cargo handling services
Arport ground handling services
Infight catenng senaces

* Audited by member firrns of KPMG
** Audited by Messrs Riaz Ahmed, Saqib, Gohar and Co, Pakistan
fukad Audited by Zhongrut Yuehua Certified Public Accountants Co , Ltd

i Audited by Syclp Gorres Velaye & Co

Audited by Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP, Singapore
Audited by member firms of Pricewaterhouse Coopers

* Audited by member firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
* Audited by Deloitte and Touche LLP, Singapore

Financial year end 28 February
Financial year end 31 December
Financial year end 30 November

Indonesia
Hong Kong
Pakistan
Singapore
India
People’s Republic
of China

- do -
Maldives
India
Vietnam
Tawan
-do-
Philippines

- 401
- 385
- 385
- 395
- 395
- 322

- 322
- 282

- 242
- 202
- 161
- 161
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24 Joint Venture Companies (in $ million)
The Group
31 March
2010 2000
Investment in joint venture companies
(unquoted, at cost) 566 569
Share of post-acquisition reserves
- general reserve 666 747
- foreign currency translation reserve (14 6) (41)
1086 1275
The Group's share of the consolidated assets and liabilities, and results of joint venture companies are as
follows:
The Group
31 March
2010 2009
Assets and llabihties
Current assets 139 4 1777
Non-current assets 748 638
214 2 2415
Current habilities (63 0) (80 4)
Non-current habilities (42 6) (33 6)
(105 6) (114 0)
Results 2009-10 2008-09
Revenue 595 6 654 6
Expenses (539 5) {590 7
56 1 639

The jont venture companies at 31 March are:

Country of Percentage of equity

incorporation and held by the Group
Principal activibes place of business 2010 2009
International Engine Component Repawr and overhaul of aero Singapore 40 3 40 4
Overhaul Pte Ltd*+ engine components and parts
Singapore Aera Engine Services  Repawr and averhaul of awcraft -do- 403 404
Private Limited*+ engines
SembCorp Network Pte Ltd**+@ Provision of logistics support and - do- - 403
Services
* Audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore
il Audited by KPMG LLP, Singapore

Financlal year end 31 December
This company Is part of SATS Group which was disposed during the financial year

B8+
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Long-Term Investments (in $ million)
The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Unquoted equity investments 44 5 524 280 280
Accumulated impairment loss (5 2) {(92) (9 2) (92)
353 432 188 188
Analysis of accumulated impairment loss
Baiance at 1 Apnl 92 9.1 92 91
Charged durning the year - 0.1 - g1
Balance at 31 March 92 92 92 92

During the previous financial year, the Group and the Company recorded an impairment loss in the profit
and loss account of $0.1 milllon pertaining to unguoted equity investments.

Other Non-Current Assets (in $ million)

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Other recervables 114 4 3916 114 4 3916
Investments in companies pending incorporation - 120 - -
114 4 403 6 114 4 3916

The Group’s other receivables are stated at amortised cost and are expected to be receved over a penod
of 2 to 10 years As at 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2009, the entire balance of other recevables I1s
denominated 1n USD.

The remaming non-current assets as at the end of the previous financial year was related to capital
expenditure incurred by SATS for the setting up of associated companies which were not legaily
incorporated as at 31 March 2009.

Inventories {in $ million)

The Group The Company
Ly 31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Technical stocks and stores 3685 3834 2977 3214
Catenng and general stocks 171 708 121 173
Work-in-progress 439 490 - -
Total inventories at lower of cost and net realisable value 426 5 5032 3098 3387

The cost of Inventories recognised as an expense amounts to $106.6 million (2008-09: $107.7 million), In
addition, the Group wrote down $7.4 million (2008-09: $22.7 million) of inventones which are recognised
as other operating expenses in the profit and loss account.




28 Trade Debtors (in $ million)

The table below Is an analysis of trade debtors as at 31 March:

Page 72 of 92

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2005 2010 2009
Not past due and not impaired 1,2360 1,3305 925 2 961 2
Past due but not impaired 1105 1492 320 317
1,346 5 14797 957 2 992 9
Imparired trade debtors - collectively assessed 16 3 67 22 40
Less Accumulated impairment losses (15 0) (21 3) (14) (30)
13 54 08 10
Impatred trade debtors - individually assessed
Customners 1n bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation 79 95 54 57
Customers who default in payment withun stipulated
framework of IATA Clearing House or Bank Settlement Plan 31 54 18 39
Less' Accumulated impairment losses (11 0) {14 5) (72) (8 6)
- 04 - 10
Total trade debtors, net 13478 1,485 S 9580 954 9

Trade debtors are non-interest bearing. The carrying amount of trade debtors impaired by credit losses 1s
reduced through the use of an allowance account unless the Group writes off the amount ascertained to
be uncollectible. In subseguent periods when a trade debtor 1s ascertained to be uncollectible, it s
written off against the atlowance account.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 90 days aging of debtor balances) are
considered indicators that the trade debtor i1s impaired. Individual trade debtor 15 wntten off when
management deems the amount not to be collectible.

Trade debtors are stated after accumulated impairment losses. An analysis of the accumulated
impairment losses I1s as follows:

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Balance at 1 Apnl 358 17.1 i16 44
Charged/(Wnitten Back) duning the year . 123 (17) 72
Written off during the year 27n (06) (13) -
Disposal of a subsidiary company 71 - - -
Acguisition of a subsidiary company - 70 - -
Balance at 31 March 260 358 86 116
Bad debts written off directly to profit and loss
account, net of debts recovered 08 24 07 12

As at 31 March 2010, the composition of trade debtors held in foreign currencies by the Group 15 as
follows. USD —~ 40 1% (2009: 36.8%), AUD - 8.2% (2009: 7.1%), EUR — 7 4% (2009 8.2%) and JPY —
3.7% (2009: 3 9%).

There was no loan to directors of the Company and its subsidiary companies in accordance with schemes
approved by shareholders of the Company.
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Deposits and Other Debtors (in $ million)

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Deposits 170 2033 107 1943
Other debtors 49.3 386 312 133
66 3 2419 419 207 6

$182.4 milion margin calls were placed with a finandial institubion by the Group and the Company n the
previous financial year. This amount was denominated in USD and had been refunded by the financal
institution during the financial year,

Investments (in $ million)

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Available-for-sale investments
Quoted mvestments
Government securities 116 io4 - -
Equity investments 341 201 - -
Non-equity investments 149 104 8 - 877
60 6 1353 - 877
Unquoted investments
Government secunties 800 499 9 800 4999
Non-eguity investments - 204 - -
800 5203 800 499 9
140 6 655 6 80O 587 6

The Group's non-equity investments compnise investments in government securities and corporate bonds.
During the previous financial year, the Group recorded an impairment loss in the profit and loss account
of $9.7 million pertaining to unquoted non-equity investments,

The Interest rates for quoted and unquoted government securities range from 1.63% to 4.63% (2009:
1.63% to 4.63%) per annum and 0.19% to 0.60% (2009: 0 23% to 0.74%) per annurm respectively The

interest rates for unquoted non-equity imvestments range from 1.81% to 4.00% per annum for the
previous financial year.

Cash and Bank Balances (in $ million)

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fixed deposits 4,069 8 3,540 8 4,0387 34320
Cash and bank 402 1 307.2 2220 260
4,471 9 3,848 0 4,260 7 _ 34580

As at 31 March 2010, the composition of cash and bank balances held 1n foreign currencies by the Group
i1s as follows. USD - 11.0% (2009: 21.6%), EUR - 1.5% (2009: 1.5%) and AUD — 1.2% (2009. 0.9%).

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on dally bank deposit rates ranging from 0.01% to
4.03% (2008-09: 0.02% to 7.50%) per annum. Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of
between one day and one year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. The weighted average effective interest rate for short-
term deposits 1s 0 35% (2008-09" 1,14%) per annum.
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Trade and Other Creditors (in $ mitlion)

Trade and other creditors are non-interest bearing As at 31 March 2010, 9.6% (2009 12 7% of trade
and other creditors were held 1in USD by the Group.

Bank Overdrafts (in $ million)

There are no bank overdrafts for both the Group and the Company as at 31 March 2010.

Included in the Group’s bank overdrafts as at 31 March 2009, was a secured banking facility of $1.8
miliion offered to certain subsidiary companies. It was secured on the property, plant and equipment and
other assets of these substdiary compames with a total carrying value of $141 2 million as at 31 March
2009. The effective interest rate ranged from 2.00% to 3 00% per annum.

The Company’s bank overdrafts of $7 5 mitlion as at 31 March 2009 were unsecured $1.3 million of the
bank overdrafts bore interest at a rate of 5 00% per annum

As at 31 March 2009, the composttion of bank overdrafts held in forelgn currencies by the Group was as
foliows: GBP — 14.1% and AUD - 5 3%.

Analysis of Capital Expenditure Cash Flow (in $ million)

The Group
31 March
2009-10 2008-09
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 1,5757 2,066 7
Property, plant and equipment acquired under credit terms {15.4) {35 6)
Cash mvested in capital expenditure 1,560 3 20311

Capital and Other Commitments (in $ million)
(a) Capital expenditure commitments

The Group and the Company have commitments for capital expenditure. Such commitments aggregated
$7,581.7 million (2005: $9,277.1 milion) for the Group and $6,839 8 million (2009: $8,154 5 million) for
the Company. The commitments relate prnincipally to the acquisition of arcraft fleet and related
equipment.

In addition, the Group's share of jont venture companies’ commitments for capital expenditures totalled
$2.4 million (2009: $21.8 million).
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Capital and Other Commitments (in $ million) {continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments

As lessee

Arrcraft

The Company has two B747-400, four B777-200, three B777-200ER, seven B777-300, eleven A330-300
and five A380-800 awrcraft under operating leases with fixed rentai rates. Under five of the aircraft lease
agreements, the rentals will be adjusted if one-month LIBOR exceeds 6 50% per annum. The onginal
lease terms range from 5 to 10.5 years. In five of the aircraft lease agreements, the Company holds
options to extend the feases for a further maximum period of three years and in 22 others, the Company
holds the options to extend the leases for a further maximum period of twe years None of the operating
lease agreements confer on the Company an option to purchase the related aircraft Sub-leasing 1s
allowed under all the lease arrangements

SIA Cargo has three B747-400F arrcraft under operating leases with fixed rental rates. The lease terms
range from 10 to 11 years. In one of the aircraft lease agreements, SIA Cargo holds the option to extend
the lease for a further maximum penod of two years. For the other two agreements, there s no option
for renewal Sub-leasing is allowed under all the lease arrangements.

SilkAir (Singapore) Private Limited ("SilkAir") has four A320-232 and two A319-132 aircraft under
operating leases with fixed rental rates. The lease terms for the two A319-132 aircraft are 5.5 years,
which SilkAir holds an option to extend the leases for one year. The lease terms for two of the A320-232
awcraft are 4 and 4 5 years, which SilkAir holds an option to extend the leases for four years. The lease
terms for the other two of the A320-232 awcraft are 7.5 and 8.5 years, which SikAir holds an option to
extend the leases for two to five years. None of the operating lease arrangements confer on SilkAir the
option to purchase the related arcraft. Sub-leasing is allowed under all the lease arrangements

Future lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Not later than one year 5750 5918 5169 4880
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,7359 1,758 7 1,540 8 1,5227
Later than five years 5307 857 1 4755 792.1
2,841 6 3,217 6 2,533 2 2,8028

Pro an uipment

The Group has entered into operating lease agreements for office and computer equipment, leasehold
land and builldings. These non-cancellable leases have lease terms of between 1 to 30 years.

Future lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Not later than one year 48 4 626 458 491
Later than one year but not later than five years 731 101 8 690 736
Later than five years 17 9 54 2 69 84
1394 2186 1217 1311

The minsmum lease payments recogmised In the profit and loss account amounted to $54.5 mitlion (2008-
09 $63.7 millon) and $51 2 milion (2008-09- $53 3 muithion) for the Group and the Company respectively.
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Capital and Other Commitments (in $ million) {(continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments

As lessor

Aircraft

The Group had previously entered into a commercial aircraft lease. This non-cancellable lease has a
remaining lease term of five years and five months The lease rental is fixed throughout the lease term,

Future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

The Group
31 March
2010 2009
Not later than one year 136 -
Later than one year but not later than five years 545 591
Later than five years 57 209
738 800

Contingent Liabilities (in $ million)
(a) Flight SQ006

There were 83 fatalies amaong 179 passengers and crew members aboard the Boeing 747 awcraft, Fight
SQO06, that crashed on the runway at the Chiang Kar Shek International Arrport, Taipel en route to Los
Angeles on 31 October 2000. With the exception of one outstanding passenger claim, all the other
Jlawsuits relating to the crash that were commenced against the Company by both the crew members and
the other passengers or their next-of-kin have been settled. These claims are covered by the insurance
coverage maintained by the Company and therefore have no matenal impact on its financial position.

(b) Cargo: Investigations by Competition Authorities and Civil Class Actions

SIA Cargo and the Company are among several airlines that have receved notice of criminal and/or
reguiatory investigabons by competition authoriies in the US, Eurgpean Union, Austratia, Canada, New
Zealand, South Africa, South Korea, and Switzerland on whether surcharges, rates or other competitive
aspects of air cargo service were lawfully determined (“the air cargo 1ssues”™) These investigations remain

ongoing. SIA Cargo and the Company are cooperating in relation to these inquines concerning the air
€argo ISsues.

In addion to the notices mentioned above, SIA Cargo and the Company are among several airlines to
have received a Statement of Objections ("SO") from the European Commission ("EC") in December 2007.
The SO sets out the EC's preliminary view of its case against the airlines with respect to alleged
competition law infringements but does not prejudge the outcome. SIA Cargo and the Company
responded to the SO in wnting and during an oral hearing in the first half of 2008. The timing and content
of any decision by the EC are uncertain, but a decision could be 1ssued in the coming months,

In December 2008, the competition authorities in New Zealand and Australia imtiated civil penalty
proceedings concerning the air cargo 1ssues. In New Zealand, a statement of claim was 1ssued against
fourteen airlines including both SIA Cargo and the Company. In Australia, statements of claim have been
jssued against nine arlnes including SIA Cargo, but the competition authorty has indicated that
additional proceedings will be brought against other carrers. These proceedings are at a prelimmary
stage. An nitial defence has been filed in both proceedings
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Contingent Liabilities (in $ million) (continued)
(b) Cargo: Investigations by Competition Authorities and Civil Class Actions (continued)

In October 2009, SIA Cargo was among several arlines to have recetved notification of alleged
infringements in South Korea in the form of an Exammer's Report and Recommendations to the South
Korean Fair Trade Commussion ("KFTC"). The Examiner’s Report 1s 38 prelimnary document and does not
constitute findings by the KFTC against SIA Cargo SIA Cargo has provided its written response to the
Examiner’s Report and heanngs are scheduled for May 2010. A decision is anticipated shortly thereafter,
but the exact timing and content of any decision are uncertain.

After the investigations commenced, civil class action damages lawsuits were filed 1n the US, Canada,
Australid and South Korea by external parbies against several arfines, mcluding SIA Cargo and the
Company. These cases still remain in their respective procedural stages and none have been tred thus far
on their respective substantive legal mernits.

As no competition authority has adopted any adverse decision against SIA Cargo and the Company, and
as the awil class action suits have neither been tried on therr respective substantive legal ments nor have
damages been quantified, it 1s premature to make a determination regarding whether the investigations,
proceedings or civil suits can be regarded as contingent habilities and, therefore, no provision has been
made n the financial statements,

(c) Passengers: Civil Class Actions and Investigations by Competition Authorities

The Company and several airlines have been named in ¢ivil class action damages lawsuits 1n the US and
Canada alleging an unlawful agreement to fix surcharges and rates on transpacific fights, These cases are
currently in procedural stages and none have been tried thus far on ther respective substantive iegal
ments. The Company has also received notice of investigations by competition authortbes in vanous
junsdictions concerning whether competitive aspects of passenger air travel services have been lawfully
determined. The Company 1s cooperating with these cniminal and regutatory mvestigations

As the cvil class action suits have neither been tried nor the damages quantified and the investigations by
the competition authorities are ongoing, it is premature to make a determination regarding whether the
cwvil suits or investigatrons can be regarded as contingent liabiites and, therefore, no provision has been
rmade in the financial statements.

{d) Australian Travel Agents' Representative Actions

A former Austrahian travel agent, Leonie’s Travel Pty Limited, filed a representative action in the Federal
Court of Australia (New South Wales District Registry) on 15 December 2006 naming seven respondents
[International Air Transport Association (“IATA”), Qantas Awrways Limited, British Airways plc, Air New
Zealand Limited, Singapore Airlines Limited, Malaysian Airline System Berhad, and Cathay Pacific Airways
Limited] in a claim on behalf of Austrahan travel agents for alleged non-payment of commissions on fuel
surcharges applied to passenger tickets issued wn Australia from May 2004 onwards. IATA was
subsequently removed from the proceedings.

in May 2007, the applicant’s solicitors filed a fresh similar representative application on behalf of Paxtours
International Travel Pty Ltd, another Australian travel agent, against Cathay Pacific Arways Limited and
the Company. The Company denies the claims and, along with each of the named airlines, 1s defending
the actions.

By agreement amongst the parties, the first case was heard with one arrline from the respondent group
as the lead defendant. The subsequent claims against the Company were put on hold until the first case 1s
resolved.

In March 2009, the Court dismissed the first travel agent’s claim, The agents appealed and on 4 May 2010
the Federal Court reversed the earlier decision The other airline has 28 days from 4 May 2010 to appeal
to the High Court of Australia.

In the meantime, there have been no substantive developments in the cdam against the Company The
Company continues to deny the claim and 1s defending the action.
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Financial Instruments (in $ million)

(a) Classification of financial instruments
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Financial assets and financial habilibes are measured on an ongoing basis etther at fair value or at

amortised cost.

The princpal accounting polictes 1n Note 2 describe how the classes of financial

instruments are measured, and how Income and expenses, including far value gains and losses, are
recognised. The following table analyses the financial assets and habthties in the statement of financial
position by the class of financal instrument to which they are assigned, and therefore by the

measurement basis.

2010

The Group

Assets

Long-term investments
Other non-current assets
Trade debtors

Deposits and other debtors
Investments

Cash and bank balances
Total financial assets
Total non-financial assets
Total assets

Liabilities

Notes payable

Finance lease commitments

Amounts owing to
associated companies

Trade and other creditors

Total financial habilitres

Total non-financial habilities

Tota! habihbies

The Company

Assets

Long-term investments

Other non-current assets

Trade debtors

Deposits and other debtors

Amounts owing by
subsidiary companies

Investments

Cash and bank bzlances

Total financial assets

Total non-financial assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Notes payable

Amounts owing to
subsidiary companies

Trade and other creditors

Total financial iabdities

Total non-financial habilities

Total labilibes

Availlable-for-
sale financial
assets

Loans and
recetvables

Financal Dernvatives at

Dervatives habilities at fair value
used for amortsed through profit
hedging cost and loss

Total

- 353
114 4 -
1,2898 -
663 -

- 1406

4471 9

353
114 4
1,347 8
66 3
1406
4471 9

59424 1759

6,176 3

- 9000 -
- 4389 -

20 -
2,2951 487

16,308 0

—
22,484 3

900.0
4389

20
24987

3,636 0 48.7

3,839.6

Loans and
receivables

Financial

Dernvatives habilites at
used for amortised
hedging cost

Available-for-
sale financial
assets

48954
8,735 0

Total

114 4
9131

419
1410

4,260 7

188 - -

- 449 -

800 - -

188
114 4
958 0

419

1410
800
4,260 7

54711

98 8 49 -

5614 8

900.0

1,298 0

- 1211 1,755.5

16,333 7
21848 5

9000

1,298 0
1,876 6

- 1211 3,953.5

4,074 6

4,390 6

8,465.2
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Financial Instruments (in $ million) {continued)

(a) Classification of financial instruments (continued)

2009

The Group

Assets

Long-term investments

Other non-current assets

Trade debtors

Deposits and other debtors

Amounts owing by
associated companies

Investments

Cash and bank balances

Total financial assets

Total non-financial assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Notes payable

Loans

Finance lease commitments

Bank overdrafts

Amounts owing 1o
associated companies

Trade and other creditors

Total financial habiiittes

Total non-financial hiabilities

Total labilities

The Company

Assets

Long-term investments

Other non-current assets

Trade debtors

Deposits and other debtors

Amounts owing by
subsidiary comparies

Investments

Cash and bank balances

Total financial assets

Total non-financial assets

Total assets

Liabilties

Notes payable

Bank overdrafts

Amounts owing to
subsidiary companies

Trade and other creditors

Total financial habilities

Total non-financial habilities

Total habilities

Loans and
recewvables

Available-for-
sale financial
assets

Denvatives
used for
hedaing

Financial

lrabulies at

Page 79 of 92

Dervatives at

falr value

amortised through profit

cost

and loss Total

403.6
1,2645
2419

04

3,848.0

432

6556

- 43 2
- 403 6
1,4855
- 2419

- 04
. 6556
- 3,848 0

5,758 4

698 8

26 4 6,678.2

928 2

1,1000
40
5485
93

06
2,6162

18,1403

24,8185

i

- 1,100 0
- 440
- 5485
- 93

- 06
371 3,581 5

928 2

43186

371 5,283 9

Loans and
recevables

Availlable-for-
sale financial
assets

Derivatives
used for
hedging

5,044 2

10,328 1

Financial
liabilities at
amortised

cost Total

3916
8318
2076

284 6

34580

188

5876

1631

- 188
- M6
- 994 9
- 2076

- 284 6
- 587 6
- 3458 0

51736

606 4

1631

- 59431

7516

16,551 2
22,494 3

900 0 900 0
75 75

1,597 8
1,940 4

1,597.8
26920

7516

44457 5,197 3

4,398.0
9,5953
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Financial Instruments (in $ million) (continued)
{(a) Classification of financial instruments {(continued)

Derivative financial instruments :ncluded in the statements of financial position are as follows:

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Asgets*
Currency hedging contracts 207 1737 158 1436
Fuel hedging contracts 57 88 52 74
Cross currency swap contracts 77 264 - -
Interest rate cap contracts 239 121 239 121
580 2210 44 9 163.1

Liabilitres#
Currency hedging contracts 173 145 145 118
Fuel hedging contracts 1129 8992 936 7398
Cross currency swap contracts 435 298 - -
Interest rate swap contracts 299 218 130 -

203 6 965 3 1211 7516

* Included under trade debtors
# Included under trade creditors

b) Fair values
Financial instruments carried at fair value

The followmg table shows an analysis of financial instruments carned at farr value by level of fair value
hierarchy:

The Group
31 March
2010
Quoted prices in
active markets for Significant other
identical instruments observable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) Total
Financial assets
Avatlable-for-sale financial assets (Note 30)
Quoted investments
- Government securibes 11.6 - 116
- Equity investments 391 - 341
- Non-equity investments 149 - 149
Unquoted investments
- Government securities - 800 800
Dervative finanaal instruments
Currency hedging contracts - 207 207
Fuel hedging contracts - 57 57
Cross currency swap contracts - 77 77
Interest rate cap contracts - 239 23.9
60 6 1380 198 6
Emnancial llabihibies.
Derivative finanaal nstruments
Currency hedging contracts - 173 173
Fuel hedging contracts - 1129 1129
Cross currency swap contracks - 435 435
Interest rate swap contracts - 299 299

- 203 6 203.6
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Financial Instruments (in $ million) (continued)
(b) Fair values (continued)
Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The Group classifies fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels,

s Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilities

* Level 2 —~ Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
iability, etther directly (1.e , as pnces) or indirectly (i.e., derved from prices)

Determination of fair value

The Group and the Company have carried all investment securities that are classified as avalable-for-sale
financial assets and all derivative instruments at their fair valuas

The fair values of jef fuel swap contracts are the mark-to-market values of these contracts. The faw
values of jet fuel option contracts are determined by reference to available market information and the
Black-Scholes option valuation model. As the Group hedges its jet fuel requirements in Mean of Platts
Singapore Jlet Kerosene ("MOPS") and that the majority of the Group’s fuel uplifts are in MOPS, the MOPS
price (2010 USD 85.59/BBL, 2009: USD 57.47/BBL) is used as the input for market fuel price to the
Black-Scholes optron valuation model, Consequently, the annualised volatity (2009-10: 23.46%, 2008-
09: 60 30%) of the jet fuel swap and option contracts 1s also estimated with datly MOPS price. The
continucusly compounded risk-free rate estimated as average of the past 12 months Singapore
Government Securities benchmark issues’ one-year yield {2009-10: 0.41%, 2008-09: 0.88%) was also
applied to each individual jet fuel option contract to derive their estimated fair values as at the end of the
reporting period.

The far values of gasoll and regrade swap contracts are also determined by reference to available market
information and are the mark-to-market values of these swap contracts. As the Group hedges in
InterContinental Exchange ("ICE”) gasoll and MOPS jet-fuel-ICE gasoil regrade, the ICE gasoll futures
contract price and the MOPS price are used as the mark-to-market prices.

The farr value of forward currency contracts 15 determined by reference to current forward prices for
contracts with similar maturity profiles. The fair values of foreign currency option contracts, interest rate
swap contracts and interest rate cap contracts are determined by reference to valuation reports provided
by counterparties.

The fair value of cross currency swap contracts 15 determined based on quoted market prices or dealer
quotes for similar mstruments used.

The fair value of quoted investments 1s generally determined by reference to stock exchange quoted
market bid prices at the close of the business at the end of the reporting penod. For investments where
there I1s no active market, fair value i1s determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm's length market transactions or reference to the current market value of another
nstrument (which is substantially the same).

Financial instruments whose carrying amounts approximate fair value

The carrying amounts of the following financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values due to
thetr short-term nature: cash and bank balances, bank overdrafts, funds from subsidiary companies,

amounts owing to/by subsidiary and associated companies, trade debtors, other debtors, trade and other
creditors.
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Finandial Instruments (in $ million) (continued)
(b) Fair values (continued)
Financial instruments carried at other than fair value

Long-term investments amounting to $35.3 million {2009: $43.2 millon) for the Group and $18.8 million
(2009 $18 8 million) for the Company are stated at cost because the far values cannot be obtamed
directly from quoted market price or indirectly using valuation techniques supported by observable market
data.

The Group and the Company have no intention to dispose of their interests in the above investiments in
the foreseeable future.

Net carrying amounts of long-term labiliies approximate the fair value as the interest rates implicit in the
long-term habiities approximate the market interest rates.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (in $ million)

The Group operates globally and generates revenue In vanious currencies. The Group’s airline operations
carry certain financial and commodity nsks, including the effects of changes in jet fuel prices, foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates and the market value of its investments. The Group’s overall risk
management approach 1s to moderate the effects of such volatiity on its financial performance The
Group’s policy 1s to use derivatives to hedge specific exposures.

As dervatives are used for the purpose of risk management, they do not expose the Group to market nsk
because gains and losses on the denvatives offset losses and gains on the matching asset, lability,
revenues or costs being hedged. Moreover, counterparty credit nsk 1s generally restricted to any hedging
gan from time to time, and not the principal amount hedged. Therefere the possibility of a matenal loss
anising In the event of non-performance by a counterparty I1s considered to be unlikely.

Financial nsk management policies are penodically reviewed and approved by the Board Executive
Committee ("BEC").

(a) Jet fuel price risk

The Group’s earnings are affected by changes in the price of jet fuel. The Group’s strategy for managing
the risk on fuel pnce, as defined by BEC, ams to provide the Group with protection against sudden and
significant increases in Jet fuel pnces. In meeting these objectives, the fuel nsk management programme
allows for the judicious use of approved instruments such as swaps and options with approved
counterparties and within approved credit limits.

Cash flow hedges

The Group manages this fuel price nsk by using swap and option contracts and hedging up to 15 months
forward using jet fuel swap and option contracts. The Group will no longer enter into new gasoil hedges.
Existing gasoil swap contracts wilt all be rolled up into jet fuel equivalents by hedging in the gasoil-jet fuel
regrade closer to matunty

The Group has appled cash flow hedge accounting to these denvatives as they are considered to be
highly effective hedging instruments. A net fair value loss before tax of $458.9 million (2009' $1,249 6
million), with a related deferred tax credit of $116.9 million (2009: $251 3 million), 15 included n the fair
value reserve in respect of these contracts.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (in $ million) (continued)
(a) Jet fuel price risk (continued)

Jet fuel price sensitivity analysis

The jet fuel price nsk sensitivity analysis 1s based on the assumption that all other factors, such as fuel
surcharge and uplifted fuel volume, remain censtant. Under this assumption, and excluding the effects of
hedging, an increase n price of one USD per barrel of jet fuel affects the Group’s and the Company’s
annual fuel costs by $44.9 million and $38.1 mullion {2008-09. $54.4 milion and $45.7 million)
respectively.

The fuel hedging sensitivity analysis 1s based on contracts that are still outstanding as at the end of the
reporting period and assumes that all jet fuel, gasoil and regrade hedges are highly effective Under
these assumptions, with an increase or decrease in hoth jet fuel and gasoll prices, each by one USD per
barrel, the before tax effects on equity are as follows.

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Effect on equity Effect on equity
Increase in one USD per barrel 51 143 42 118
Decrease in one USD per barre} {(51) (14 3) {4 2) (11 8)

(h) Foreign currency risk

The Group I1s exposed to the effects of foreign exchange rate fluctuations because of its foreign currency
denominated operating revenues and expenses. For the financal year ended 31 March 2010, these
accounted for 62.4% of total revenue (2008-09: 63.0%) and 58.6% of total operating expenses (2008-
09: 69.0%) The Group’s largest exposures are from USD, Euro, UK Sterling Pound, Swiss Franc,
Australian Dollar, New Zealand Dollar, Japanese Yen, Indian Rupee, Hong Kong Dollar, Chinese Yuan,
Korean Wen and Malaysian Ringgit. The Group generates a surpius in all of these currencies, with the
exception of USD. The deficit in USD is attnbutable to capital expenditure, fuel costs and aircraft leasing
costs — all conventionally dencminated and payable in USD.

The Group manages its foreign exchange exposure by a policy of matching, as far as pessible, receipts
and payments in each individual currency. Surpluses of convertible currencies are sold, as soon as
prachcable, for USD and SGD. The Group also uses forward foregn currency contracts and foreign
currency option contracts to hedge a portion of its future foreign exchange exposure. Such contracts
provide for the Group to sell currencies at predetermined forward rates, buying either USD or SGD
depending on forecast requirements, with settlement dates that range from one month up to one year.
The Group uses these currency hedging contracts purely as a hedging tool. It does not take positions in
currencies with a view to making speculative gans from currency mavements,

Cash flow hedges
As at 31 March 2010, the Company holds USD 158 3 milion (2009: USD 268.7 million) in short-term

deposits to hedge agamst foreign currency risk for a portion of the forecast USD capital expenditure in the
next 10 months.

During the financial year, the Group entered into financial instruments to hedge expected future
payments in USD and SGD

The cash flow hedges of the expected future purchases in USD and expected future payments in SGD 1n
the next 12 months are assessed to be highly effective and at 31 March 2010, a net fair value gain before
tax of $302.5 mullion (2009: $455.1 mulion), with a related deferred tax charge of $84 6 million (2009*
$110.5 muthon), is included in the fair value reserve in respect of these contracts.

Fair value through profit and loss

In addition, there are cross currency swap contracts n place where the Group pays SGD and receives
USD with exchange rates ranging from 1.3085 to 1.6990 (2009: 1.3085 to 1.6990). These contracts are
used to protect the foreign exchange nsk exposure of the Group’s USD-denominated finance lease
commitments, The matunty period of these contracts ranges from 21 August 2015 to 14 February 2018.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (in $ million) (continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk {continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The foreign currency nsk sensitivity analysis 1s based on the assumption that all cash flow hedges are
highly effective; hence there wilt be no impact on profit before taxation from the cash flow hedges.

The following table details the sensitivity of a 1% strengthening of SGD against the respective foreign
currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only significant outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts therr translation at the period end for a 1% change In foreign currency rates

The Group
31 March
2010 2009
Effect on profit Effect on profit
Effect on before Effect on before
equity taxation equity taxation
AUD (09) (14) 44) {1.5)
EUR 33 (14) (26) (13)
GBP {1 3) (05 {2 6) (2
JPY (09 o4 (249 (05)
uso - 66 - 2N
The Company
31 March
2010 2009
Effect on profit Effect on profit
Effect on before Effect on before
equrty taxation equity taxation
AUD (09) (12} {4 1) 14
EUR (2.4 (09) (1.8) (09)
GBP (11) (0.4) 23) ©2)
JPY 08 3 (15) (04
usD - (6 6) - 28)

If the relevant foreign currency weakens by 1% against SGD, equity and profit before taxation would
increase by the same amounts.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s earnings are also affected by changes n interest rates due to the impact such changes have
on Interest income and expense from short-term deposits and other interest-bearing financial assets and
labilites. The Group enters into interest rate swap contracts and interest rate cap contracts to manage
mterest rate costs on its financial assets and habilities, with the prior approval of the BEC or Boards of
subsidrary companies.

Cash flow hedges
As at 31 March 2010, the Company had interest rate cap contracts at a stnke rate of 6,50% (2009:
6.50%), matunng in 7 to 8 years, to hedge against nisk of increase in aircraft lease rentals.

The cash flow hedges of the interest rate cap contracts are assessed to be highly effective and as at 31
March 2010, a net fair value gain before tax of $4.1 millien (2009. net fair value loss before tax of $6.5
million), with a related deferred tax charge of $0.7 million (2009: deferred tax credit of $1.3 million), was
included n the fair value reserve 1n respect of these contracts.

The Group also has interest rate swap contracts in place whereby 1t pays fixed rates of interest ranging
from 3.00% to 4.95% (2009: 3 00% to 4.95%) and receives the USD Swap rate then prevaiing at the
delivery of certain awcraft on operating lease These contracts are used to protect a portion of the
finance lease commitments from exposure to fluctuations in interest rates The maturity penod of these
contracts ranges from 7 September 2015 to 25 October 2015.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (in $ million) (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

The cash flow hedges of some of the interest rate swap contracts are assessed to be highly effective and
as at 31 March 2010, a net fair value loss before tax of $22.7 million (2009' $14.4 million), with a related
deferred tax credit of $2.2 mithon (2009. $2.4 million), was included in the fair value reserve in respect of
these contracts.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The interest rate sensitivity analysis 1s based on the following assumptions:

+ Changes in market interest rates affect the interest income or finance charges of vanable interest
financial Instruments,

e Changes in market interest rates affect the fair value of denvative financial instruments
designated as hedging instruments and all interest rate hedges are expected to be highly
effective.

= Changes in the fair values of derwative financial instruments and other financial assets and
labities are estimated by discounting the future cash flows to net present values using
appropriate market rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.

Under these assumptions, an increase or decrease in market interest rates of one basis point for all

currencies m which the Group has borrowings and dervative financial instruments at 31 March 2010 will
have the following effects:

The Group
31 March
2010 2009
Effect on profit Effect on profit
Effect on before Effect on before
equity taxation equity taxation
Increase in one basis point in market interest rates 0.4 05 * 04
Decrease in one basis point in market interest rates (0 4) (05 * 04)
* Amount less than $0 1 mulhon
The Company
31 March
2010 2009
Effect on profit Effect on profit
Effect on before Effect on before
equity taxation equity taxation
Increase in one basis point in market interest rates 04 03 * 02
Decrease in one basis point i market interest rates ) (04) (03) * (02)

* Amount less than $0 1 rmitlion,
{d) Market price risk

The Group and the Company owned $140.6 millon (2009- $655.6 mullion) and $80.0 million (2009:
$587.6 million) in available-for-sale investments respectively at 31 March 2010.

The market nsk associated with these investments 1s the potential loss resulting from a decrease In
market prices.
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies {in $ million) (continued)
(d) Market price risk (continued)
Market price sensitivity analysis

If prices for available-for-sale investments increase or decrease by 1% with all other vanables being held
constant, the before tax effects on equity are as follows:

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009
Effect on equity Effect on equity
Increase in 1% of quoted prices 14 66 08 59
Decrease in 1% of quoted prices f14) (66) (08) (59)

(e) Liguidity risk

At 31 March 2010, the Group had at s disposal, cash and short-term deposits amounting to $4,471.9
million (2009; $3,848.0 million). In addition, the Group had avallable shortterm credit facilibies of about
$535.1 million (2009: $486.1 milhon). The Group also has Medium Term Note Programmes under which
it may i1ssue notes up to $1,000.0 mithon (2009: $1,300 0 milion). Under these Programmes, notes
issued by the Company may have varying maturities as agreed with the relevant financial institutions.

The Group’s holdings of cash and short-term deposits, together with committed funding facilities and net
cash flow from operations, are expected to be sufficient to cover the cost of all firm arcraft delivenes due
in the next financial year. It i1s expected that any shortfall would be met by bank borrowings or pubhc
market funding. Due to the necessity to plan aircraft orders well in advance of delivery, it I1s not
economical for the Group to have committed funding in place at present for all outstanding orders, many
of which relate to aircraft which will not be delivered for several years. The Group’s policies in this regard
are in ine with the funding policies of other major atwrlines.

The matunty profile of the financial habilities of the Group and the Company is as follows. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months
approximate therr carrying amounts as the impact of discounting 1s insignificant.

Within 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 More than
1 year years years years years 5 years Total
2010
The Group
Notes payable 374 9280 - - - - 965 4
Finance lease commitments 782 804 825 83.3 643 106 3 495.0
Trade and other creditors 2,2951 - - - - - 2,205 1
Amounts owing to associated companies 20 - - - - - 20
Denvative financal instruments
Currency hedging contracts 173 - - - - - 173
Fuel hedging contracts 1129 - - - - - 1129
Cross currency swap contracts 43 5 - - - - - 43.5
Interest rate swap contracts 298 - - - - - 299
2,616 3 1,008 4 825 83.3 643 106 3 3,961 1
The Company
Notes payable 374 9280 - - - - 9654
Trade and other creditors 1,755 5 - - - - - 1,755 5
Amounts owing to subsidiary companies 1,298 0 - - - - - 1,298.0
Denvative financial instruments,
Currency hedging contracts 145 - - - - - 145
Fuel hedging contracts 936 - - - - - 936
Interest rate swap contracts 130 - - - - - 13.0
3,212 0 928 0 - - - - 4,140 0




Page 87 of 92
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (in $ million) (continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (continued)
Within 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 Mote than
1 year years years years years 5 years Total
2009
The Group
Notes payable 2399 374 928 0 - - - 1,205 3
Finance lease commitments 852 873 892 911 918 1885 6331
Bank overdrafts 93 - - - - - 93
Loans 331 54 32 05 02 22 446
Trade and other creditors 2,616 2 - - - - - 2,616 2
Amounts owing to associated companies 06 - - - - - 06
Derivative financial instruments,
Currency hedqing contracts 145 - - - - - 145
Fuel hedging contracts 899 2 - - . - - 899 2
Cross currency swap contracts 29 8 - - - - - 298
Interest rate swap contracts 218 - - - - - 218
3,949 6 130 1 1,020 4 91.6 92.0 190 7 5474 4
The Company
Notes payable 374 374 9280 - - - 1,002 8
Trade and other creditors 1,940 4 - - - - - 1,940 4
Amounts owing to subsidiary companies 1,597 8 - - - - - 1,597 8
Bank overdrafts 75 - - - - - 75
Derivative financial instruments:
Currency hedging contracts 118 - - - - - 118
Fuel hedging contracts 7398 - - - ~ - 7398
4,334 7 374 9280 - - - 53001

() Credit risk

The Group has an independent Group Debts Review Committee to review the follow up actions on
outstanding receivables monthly. On a day-to-day basis, the respective Finance divisions have the
primary responsibility for measuring and managing specific risk exposures.

The maximum exposure to credit nsk for the Group and the Company are as follows:

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2008
Long-term investments 353 43.2 188 188
Other non-current assets 1144 403 6 1144 3916
Trade debtors 1,347 8 1,485 5 958 0 994.9
Deposits and other debtors 66 3 2419 419 2076
Prepayments 926 1019 820 778
Amounts owing by subsidiary companies - - 1410 284 6
Amounts owing by associated companies - 04 - -
Loan to a subsidiary company - - 500 250
Loans to associated companies - 1385 - 137.1
Investments 1406 655 6 80O 5876
Cash and bank balances 44719 3,848.0 4,260 7 3,4580
6,268 9 69186 5,746 8 6,183 0

There are no significant concentrations of credit nsk other than on denvative counterparhes where

transactions are hmited to financial institutions possessing high credit quality and hence the nisk of default
1s low.

The sale of passenger and cargo transportation i1s largely achieved through IATA accredited sales agents.
The credit risk of such sales agents 15 relatively small owing to a broad diversification. In specific
instances, the contract may require special collaterat
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (in $ million) (continued)
(f) Credit risk {(continued)

Unless expressly stated otherwise in the contract, recevables and payables among airlines are settled
either bilaterally or via the IATA Clearng House. Recewvables and payables are generally netted and
settled at weekly intervals, which lead to a clear reduction in the nisk of defauit.

For all other service relationships, depending on the nature and scope of the services rendered, collateral
1s required, credit reports or references are obtained and use 1s made of historical data from previous
business relations, especially with regard to payment behaviour, in order to avoid non-performance.

Collaterals requested from debtors include bank guarantees, cash-in-heu of deposit and secunity deposits,
Allowance I1s made for doubtful accounts whenever risks are identified.
() Counterparty risk

Surplus funds are invested In interest-bearing bank deposits and other high quality short-term liguid
investments. Counterparty risks are managed by limiting aggregated exposure on all outstanding
financial instruments to any individual counterparty, taking into account its credit rating. Such
counterparty exposures are regularly reviewed, and adjusted as necessary. This mitigates the risk of
matenial loss arising from the event of non-performance by counterparties

The Group determines concentrations of credit nsk by monitoring the industry, country and credit rating
of its counterparties. The table below shows an analysis of credit nsk exposures of balances that exceed
5% of the financial assets of the Group and the Company as at 31 March:

The Group The Company
Outstanding Percentage of total Cutstanding Percentage of total
balance financial assets balance financial assets
Counterparty profiles 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
By industry
Travel agencies 3690 3481 6 0% 5 2% 3493 3346 6 2% 56%
Arlines 1784 2310 2.9% 35% 108 2 1353 19% 23%
Financial institutions 4,6908 43575 759% 65.2% 4,462 4 38780 795% 653%
Others 5815 1,456 1 94% 21 8% 2088 10842 53% 182%
58197 6,392 7 94 2% 957% 5,218 7 54321 929% 914%
By region.
East Asia 2,507 6 29181 406% 43.7% 2,1449 2,259 1 382% 380%
Europe 2,196 2 25311 355% 379% 2,1149 24091 37.7% 406%
South West Pacific 1641 3888 2.7% 5 8% 1327 3577 2 3% 6 0%
Amencas 3889 442.7 6 3% 6 6% 3158 3646 5 6% 61%
West Asia and Afnica 562 9 1120 9 1% 1 7% 5104 416 9 1% 07%
58197 6,392 7 94 2% 957% 52187 5432 1 929% 914%
By Moody's credit ratings.
Investment grade (A to Aaa) 4,689 2 48842 759% 731% 4,462 2 43768 795% 737%
Investment grade (Baa) 05 31 0 0% 0 0% 05 11 0 0% 0 0%
Non-rated 1,1300 1,505 4 183% 226% 756 5 1,054 2 13.4% 17 7%
58197 63927 542% 957% 52192 54321  929% 914%

Capital Management (in $ million)

The primary objective of the management of the Company’s capital structure 1s to maintain an efficient
mix of debt and equity in order to achieve a low cost of capital, while taking into account the desirability
of retaning financial flexibility to pursue business opportunities and adequate access to lquudity to
mitigate the effect of unforeseen events on cash flows.

The Directors regularly review the Company’s capttal structure and make adjustments to reflect economic
condttions, business strategies and future commitments
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Capital Management (in $ million) (continusd)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which 1s total debt divided by total capital.
The Company did not breach any geanng covenants during the financial years ended 31 March 2010 or

31 March 2009. In the same period, no significant changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes relating to the management of the Company’s capital structure.

The Group The Company
31 March 31 March
2010 2009 2010 2009

Notes payable 9000 1,100 0 S00 0 S00 0
Finance lease commitments 4389 5485 - -
Loans - 44 0 - -
Bank overdrafts - 93 - 75
Total debt 1,3389 1,701 8 900 0O 907 5
Share capital 1,750 6 1,684 8 1,750 6 1,684 8
Reserves 11,7183 12,245.8 11,732 7 11,2142
Total capital 13,468 9 13,9306 13,483 3 12,899 0
Gearing ratio (btmes) 010 012 007 007

Related Party Transactions (in $ million)

For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Group f the
Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the
party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are
subject to cormmon control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, these were
the following significant related party transactions which were carried out in the nomal course of
business on terms that prevail in arm’s length transactions during the financial year:

The Group The Company
2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09
Purchases of services from subsidiary companies - - 493.4 781 4
Services rendered to subsidiary companies - - {1,045 3) (1,432 8)
Purchases of services from associated comparies 348 1328 201 820
Services rendered to associated companies 57 (40 7) (4 0) (14 6}
Purchases of services from joint venture companies 03 12 03 12
Services rendered to joint venture companies (10 3) {10 8) - {0 8)

Directors’ and key executives’ remuneration of the Company

The Company
2009-10 2008-09
Directors
Salary, bonuses and other costs 40 63
CPF and other defined contnbutions * *
Share-based compensation expense 09 12
49 75
Key executives (excluding executive directors
Salary, bonuses and other costs 34 57
CPF and other defined contnbutions * *
Share-based compensation expense 11 12
45 69

* Amount {ess than $0 1 million
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Related Party Transactions (in $ million) {continued)

Share options granted to and exercised by directors and key executives of the Company are as follows

Aggregate Aggregate
options granted ophons exercised Aggregate
Exercise pnce for since since ophons
Opbons granted options granted commencement commencement outstanding at
dunng financal  dunng financal of scheme to end of scheme to end end of finanaoal
year under year under of finanaat year  of financial year Options year under
Name of parbapant review review under review under review lapsed review
Chew Choon Seng - - 1,194,000 120,000 - 1,074,000
Bey Soo Khiang - - 762,000 342,000 - 420,000
Huang Cheng Eng - - 747,000 456,750 - 290,250
Mak Swee Wah - - 362,750 156,650 - 206,100
Ng Chin Hwee - - 214,025 83,500 - 130,525
Goh Choon Pheng - - 364,275 18,000 - 346,275

Conditional awards granted to directors and key executives of the Company pursuant to the Restncted
Share Plan and the Performance Share Plan are as follows:

RSP Base Awards

Aggregate Base
Awards granted since

Base Awards Adjustment commencement of

Balance as granted Base Awards ansing from Balance as RSP to end of

at during the vested dunng dvidend /7 at 31 March finanaal year under

Name of Participant 1 Apnl 2009 financial year _ the financial year specie* 2010 review

Chew Choon Seng 100,215 36,000 46,215 10,800 100,800 177,825

Bey Soo Khiang 36,945 20,000 16,945 4,800 44,800 72,015

Huang Cheng Eng 30,864 17,000 13,864 4,080 38,080 59,646

Mak Swee Wah 27,783 17,000 10,783 4,080 38,080 53,998

Ng Chin Hwee 17,000 17,000 - 4,080 38,080 38,080

Goh Choon Phong 30,283 13,000 10,783 3,900 36,400 54,885
RSP Final Awards (Pending Release) ™

Agagregate ordinary

shares released to

partiapant since

Finat Awards Adjustment commencement of

Balance as granted Final Awards ansing from Balance as RSP to end of

at dunng the released dunng dvidend /7 at 31 March finangal year under

Name of Parbiopant 1 Apnl 2009 financia! year*  the finanaal year speae* 2010 review

Chew Choon Seng 18,472 50,840 34,620 4,162 38,854 53,120

Bey Soo Khiang 5,124 18,640 12,420 1,480 13,824 18,620

Huang Cheng Eng 4,642 15,250 9,925 1,196 11,163 14,525

Mak Swee Wah 3,062 11,870 7,435 899 8,396 10,535

Ng Chin Hwee - - - - - -

Goh Choon Phong 4,642 11,870 8,235 993 9,270 12,835
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Related Party Transactions (in $ million) (continued)

PSP Base Awards
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Aggregate

Aggregate Base ordinary shares

Base Base Awards granted released to

Awards Awards since  parbicipant since

Balance granted vested  Adjustment  Balance as commencement  commencement

as at dunng the during the  arising from at31 of PSPtoendof of PSP toend of

1 Apnl financial financial dmdend wn March financial year financial year

Name of Parbhapant 2009 year vear Speqie* 2010 under review under review
Chew Choon Seng 134,625 48,000 27,729 18,587 173,483 201,212 20,796
Bey Soo Khiang 54,350 22,000 13,864 7,498 69,984 83,848 10,398
Huang Cheng Eng 37,594 15,000 10,270 5,078 47,402 57,672 7,702
Mak Swee Wah 28,967 15,000 7,805 4,339 40,501 48,306 5,853
Ng Chin Hwee 15,000 15,000 - 3,600 33,600 33,600 -
Goh Choon Phong 23,978 8,000 8,216 2,851 26,613 34,829 6,162

Rl The actual number of RSP Final Awards of fully paid ordinary shares will range from 0% to 150% of the Base Awards and is
contingent on the Achuevements agamst Targets over the two-year performance penods relating to the relevant awards

* The actual number of PSP Final Awards of fully pard ordinary shares will range from 0% to 200% of the Base Awards and 15
contingent an the Achievements against Targets qver the three-vear perfarmance penods relating to the relevant awards

* Arising from the dwvidend 2 spege of shares in SATS on 1 September 2009

* Final Awards granted dunng the financial year 1s determmed by applying the achievernent factor to the Base Awards that have
vested duning the finanaal year

Subsequent Events

The Company signed an agreement on 29 April 2010 to lease out six B777-200ER atrcraft to an arhne for
a lease period of 2 to 2.5 years each

In addition, an agreement was signed on 3 May 2010 for the sale of four B777-200 aircraft to another

airine. The four awcraft are to be delivered in 2010 after therr scheduled releases from the operating
fleet,
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY
THE SINGAPORE EXCHANGE SECURITIES TRADING LIMITED

Interested Person Transactions (in $ million)

The aggregate values of all interested person transactions entered into during the financial year are as
follows:

Aggregate value of all
transactions {excluding Aggregate value of all
transactions less than $100,000 transactions conducted under a
and transactions conducted under  shareholders' mandate pursuant

a shareholders’ mandate to Rule 920 of the SGX Listing
pursuant to Rule 920 of the SGX Manual (excluding transactions
Listing Manual) less than $100,000}
2009-10 2009-10
Singapore Airport Terminal Services Limited Group
Aero Laundry & Linen Services Private Limited - 67
Arr India - SATS Joint Venture (50 50) - 08
Bening Airport Inflight Kitchen Limited - 24
Beijing Aviation Ground Services Company Ltd - 29
Maldives Inflight Catenng Pte Ltd - a7
PT Jasa Angkasa Semesta Thk - 52
SATS Airport Services Pte Ltd - 153
SATS Catering Pte Ltd - 104
SATS HK Limited - 09
SATS Secunty Services Private Limited - 131
Singapore Airpoert Terminal Services Limited - 2372
Ta) Madras Flhight Kitchen Pvt Limited - 04
Taz SATS Aur Catering Ltd - 23
Tan Son Nhat Cargo Services Ltd (TCS) - 05
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited Gro:
Aspreqise Pte Ltd - 06
Certis CISCO Secunty Pte Ltd - 05
Great Wall Airines Company Ltd - 23
MediaCorp Pte Ltd - 02
PT Bank Danamon Indonesia TBK - 02
Temasek Holdings (Private) Limited - 04
Tiger Airways Singapore Pte Ltd - 01
Singapore Technolodaies Engineering Ltd Group
ST Aerospace Engineering Pte Ltd - 05
Singapore Telecommunications Ltd Group
NCS Pte Lid - 13
Singapere Telecommunications Ltd - 10
Trusted Hub Limited - 02
Total interested person transactions - 3061

Note: All the above interested person transactions were carned out on normal commercial terms.,

Material Contracts

Since the end of the previous financial year, the Company and its subsidiary companies did not enter into
any materal contracts nvolving interests of the Chief Executive Officer, directors or controlling
shareholders and no such material contracts still subsist at the end of the financial year.




